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BERESTE
£ Results
HEWA Revenue
He: Where:
MLCC %% MLCC business
BEFRIHE Sale of mobile phones
(P5E1) (Note 1)
BEFRES Trading of mobile phones
GEY) (Note 2)
B ER(H3) Battery business (Note 3)
HERA Cost of sales
EM Gross profit
FE(BR)/FIE {Loss)/profit for the year
MT AL : attributable to:
— RRRIREREBA — Equity holders
of the Company
SREK(FE), /27 Basic loss)/earnings per share
EERAR Assets and liabilities
BEE Total assets
maf Total liabilities
B Total equity
AR AR attributable to:
—RRRIREREBA — Equity holders
of the Company
FfaE
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The following tables are summaries of the Group’s results, assets,
liabilities and equity for the past five financial years:

BE12A3NALEE
Year ended 31 December
20135 20124 2011 & 20104 20094
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
ARETRT ARETT AR®TE AR®TRT AR%TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
551,762 538,335 481,402 396,298 615,391
513,150 414143 357,274 396,298 300,289
- - - - 315,102
- 112,993 124,128 - -
38,612 11,199 - - -
(466,139) (473,998) (417,333) (308,350) (529,227)
85,623 64,337 64,069 87,948 86,164
(5,373) (8,159) 14,556 33,955 19,703
(5,373) (8,159) 14,556 33,955 19,703
(1.3)flicents  (2.0)flicents ~ 3.61lcents  84flicents  4.91licents
W128318
As at 31 December
2013 20124 20114 20104 2009 F
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETT AR%®TR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
808,942 792,177 833,461 662,375 600,239
366,971 346,487 389,066 225,105 190,144
441,971 445,690 444,395 437,270 410,095
441,971 445,690 444,395 437,270 410,095
Notes:

(1)

The manufacturing and sale of Eton brand mobile phones and mobile
phone components segment of the Group was discontinued upon
the pass of the ordinary resolution to dispose of its entire equity
interest in Eycom Technology Co., Limited at the EGM held on 14
October 2009.

In August 2011, the Company set up the new mobile phones trading
business which engages in purchase of mobile phones from third
party suppliers and sales to overseas customers. On 28 June 2013,
the Company’s business operation in the trading of mobile phones
was discontinued.

On 27 December 2013, the Company discontinued the battery
business.
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Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
PO Box 2681,

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liao Jie (resigned on 18 September 2013)

Mr. Xu Chuncheng (retired on 18 September 2013)

Mr. Jing Wenping (appointed on 7 May 2013)

Mr. Wang Ye (appointed on 18 September 2013)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Shuang Mei (resigned on 25 January 2013)
Mr. Chen Hao

Mr. Cheng Wusheng

Mr. Zhang Zhilin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. Pan Wei

Mr. Liu Huanbin

Mr. Liang Rong (appointed on 7 May 2013)

Mr. Mak Ka Wing (appointed on 18 September 2013)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman)

Mr. Pan Wei

Mr. Liu Huanbin

Mr. Liang Rong (appointed on 4 November 2013)
Mr. Mak Ka Wing (appointed on 4 November 2013)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Huanbin (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Weirong

Ms. Shuang Mei (resigned on 25 January 2013)
Mr. Pan Wei

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Huanbin (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Weirong

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
PO Box 2681,

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands
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BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit A, 20/F., Po Wah Commercial Centre
226 Hennessy Road
Wanchai
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
EYANG Building

No. 3 Qimin Street

No. 2 Langshan Road, North Area

Hi-tech Industrial Park

Nanshan District

Shenzhen, the PRC

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Chen Weirong
Mr. Leung Wai Chung

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Leung Wai Chung CPA

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Appleby Trust (Cayman) Limited

Clifton House

75 Fort Street

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank

China Merchants Bank

Shenzhen Ping An Bank

Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Hang Seng Bank Limited

PRC LAWYER
Win & Sun Law Firm

AS TO CAYMAN ISLANDS LAW

Conyers Dill & Pearman

AUDITOR
CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

STOCK CODE
00117

COMPANY WEBSITE
http://www.szeyang.com
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Mr. Chen Weirong (FR1£%%), aged 55, is an Executive Director and
Chairman of the Board, as well as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He is in charge of the corporate strategy, planning and
overall development. He is also the founder of the Group. Mr. Chen
graduated from ZEf T2 (South China Institute of Technology*,
now known as ZERIE T KE2 South China University of Technology*)
in 1982 with a bachelor’'s degree in engineering. Upon graduation,
Mr. Chen started his career as a technician in FEEEBRMH AR A
7] (Konka Group Company Limited*) in 1982, a major consumer
electronics manufacturing and distribution enterprise in the PRC,
and became its managing director in 1994 until 2001. In 1996, Mr.
Chen was elected as “Outstanding Young Entrepreneur of
Shenzhen”, in 1997, he was awarded the “National May 1st’
Labour Medal” (2 BI[ i — | 4 &) #& &) and in 1998, he was
elected as a representative in the Standing Committee of the 9th
National People’'s Congress. Mr. Chen has been the Chairman of
the Group since November 2001.

Mr. Jing Wenping (& X ), aged 32, is an executive Director of
the Company appointed on 7 May 2013. Mr. Jing is the deputy
general manager of MLCC division of the Group. He is in charge of
the Group’s MLCC product management, including development,
quality and production. Following his graduation from & F&H% K £
(University of Electronic Science and Technology China*) in 2005,
Mr. Jing started his career in the Group and was promoted to the
deputy factory director of the MLCC Production Centre in February
2008. He left the Group in April 2009, but rejoined later on in
January 2012. He was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in May 2013.

*

For identification purpose only
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Mr. Wang Ye (£ HE), aged 47, and graduated from the Department
of Chemistry of Fg & B Z itk # 2L (Nanchang Technology and
Education College*) (now known as T P8 &} £ b &5 KX £ (Jiangxi
Science & Technology Normal University*) with a degree in Applied
Chemistry in 1989. He obtained a postgraduate degree and a
master’s degree in MBA from = & 81 £X BUA K 2 (the College of
Management of Zhongnan University of Economics and Law*) in
2008. From 1989 to 1999, he served on T 71 & #& & X (the
Provincial Economic and Trade Commission in Jiangxi*), where he
was appointed as engineer and director in a printed circuit company
under the Commission. From 2000 to 2004, he was the MD
Manager of 1828 FEENRR AR A 7] (Boluo Konka Printed Board
Co., Ltd.*), a member of FE{EEE K% B R A 7 (“Konka Group
Co., Ltd*"). Since 2004, he has been serving &I FEERILER B
[R /2 7] (Shenzhen Eyang Technology Development Co., Ltd.*) as
production factory manager and chief manager of the
manufacturing centre. Currently, he is the general manager of Z#
+FBE TR AR A AR (Anhui Jineyang Electronic Technology
Co., Ltd*). Mr. Wang was appointed as an executive director of the
Company in September 2013.

Mr. Chen Hao (B&%), aged 48, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Chen graduated from 232 T A2 (Huazhong University
of Science and Technology*, now known as ZEFR R AE) with a
bachelor's degree in computer science in 1989. He has over 16 years of
experience in the information technology industry. Mr. Chen joined
Legend Group in 1992. He was the founder and the general manager
of Legend Advanced System Ltd. During his tenure, he was
responsible for strategic management and business
implementation. Mr. Chen founded Legend Capital, a venture
capital firm, in 2001, and has served as head of investment ever
since. He is currently a director of the company, responsible for
overall control and coordination of investment activities. Mr. Chan
is also a director of a number of information technology companies,
including Spreadtrust Communications, Inc. (NASDAQ: SPRD) and
Parade Technologies Ltd. (4966.TWO). He also serves as a director
in a number of investment companies. He was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company in April 2007.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Cheng Wusheng (22 4), aged 46, is a Non-executive Director
of the Company. He was regional manager of Konka Group
Company Limited and deputy general manager of BRFAEEIEE T A
[R 2 7] (Shaanxi Konka Electronic Co., Ltd.*) from October 1990 to
June 1996, responsible for product sales and promotion. Mr.
Cheng is currently the director of ®RYI T EGR EEEFR R A
(Shenzhen Nanhua Yaxing Industrial Co., Ltd.*) which is a trading
company. He has shareholding interests in the Company through
his wholly-owned company WU SHENG Management Limited. He
was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company in April
2007.

Mr. Zhang Zhilin (38 %#K), aged 63, is a Non-executive Director of
the Company. He was the factory director of /@ EREIFRA EE
m % & @ % E # M (Shanghai Pudong Heging Town Xiangyang
Village Xiangyang Electroplating Factory*) from February 1981 to
November 1985 and was also the factory director of i HEETE
B B & § B (Shanghai Pudong Meiling Plastics Factory*) from
December 1985 to January 1994. As a factory director, he was
responsible for production operation and human resource
management. Mr. Zhang is currently the director of /GZE R %
AR AT (Shanghai Huali Packing Co., Ltd.*), FEEBEZKER
R A &) (Shanghai Meiyang Precision Moulding Co., Ltd.*), F/8&
B3 ER AT (Shanghai Huiyang Industrial Co., Ltd.*), +/&Z=E
R EBFREZAM A A (Shanghai Taihui LCD Co., Ltd.*), and L/&#
HEEPBBRMLM (Shanghai Pudong Meiling Plastics Factory*), all
of which are manufacturing companies. He was appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2007.

Mr. Pan Wei (& {%), aged 57, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Pan graduated from 1t 5§ & £ Bz
(Beijing Institute of Steel*, now known as Jt REHT K2 | University of
Science and Technology Beijing*) with a bachelor’'s degree in physical
chemistry in 1982. He obtained a master’s degree in engineering and
doctoral degree in engineering from Nagoya University in 1987 and
1990 respectively. He is currently a professor in the Department of
Materials Science and Engineering, Tsinghua University. Mr. Pan
specialises in material science, engineering research and
educational projects, including thermal barrier materials, transparent
ceramic materials, nano materials and devices and other conductive
ceramic materials. He was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in April 2007.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (& # 7=), aged 49, is the Company’s
independent non-executive Director since April 2007. He is also the
chairman of the audit committee of the Board. Mr. Chu has over 20
years of experience in corporate finance, audit, accounting and
taxation. Mr. Chu is an executive director of Chinese People
Holdings Company Limited (F RIZJ B R A F)) (stock code: 681)
and an independent non-executive director of China Vehicle
Components Technology Holdings Limited (Ff BZE@HZ 4RI B
fR A F]) (stock code: 01269), Huayu Expressway Group Limited (=
E S #® % B AR QA (stock code: 01823), Flyke International
Holdings Limited (752 BIBRZEAZ AR 2 7)) (stock code: 01998) and
China AU Group Holdings Limited (7 B & % &= @ 1= j& A R A 7))
(stock code: 8176) and Telecom Service One Holdings Limited (&
S ERHERR AR A R)) (stock code: 8145). During the period from
September 2005 to March 2007 Mr. Chu was the executive
director of Mastermind Capital Limited (E/E#&% & GRE A7) (stock
code: 905) which was known as Haywood Investments Limited
during the relevant period. Mr. Chu was an independent non-
executive director of Substainable Forest Limited (AR 2R A
FRA 7)) (formerly known as Bright Prosperous Holdings Limited (&
BRI B R A F]) (stock code: 723) from January 2008 to August
2010. Mr. Chu served at Sun Century Group Limited (A5t 40 & E
BRAA]) (formerly known as Hong Long Holdings Limited) (J&[&
EIRB PR A F)) (stock code: 1383) as a company secretary during
the period from 2008 to 2010, All of the aforementioned companies
are companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chu graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Master Degree in Business Administration. Mr. Chu is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chu is
also an associate member of both the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries.

Mr. Liu Huanbin (2}#2#), aged 72, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Liu graduated from g T 2657 (South
China Institute of Technology*, now known as ffg 32 T A2, South
China University of Technology*) in 1965 with a bachelor’s degree in
engineering. He holds professorship in chemical engineering in g
¥ T K £ (South China University of Technology*), and was later
promoted to the principal of the university for the tenure from May
1995 to September 2003. In 2001, Mr. Liu was awarded as a foreign
academician by Academy of Engineering of Russia. He is currently a
professor in the South China University of Technology. He was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in April 2007.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Liang Rong (£ £8), aged 49, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company appointed on 7 May 2013. Mr. Liang
attained his master’s degree in science from BRI 8z ¢ B 3x4lT
2T FT (the Institute of Optics and Electronics of Chinese Academy
of Sciences*) when he graduated in 1989. As the executive vice
president and director cum president of FE{EEE XD AR A @)
(Konka Group Co., Ltd.*) previously, Mr. Liang has served as the
director and general manager of & JI| 7 M BB E R GR Q 7
(Shenzhen Vcall Communications & Technology Ltd.*) (formerly 7%
Il 77 4 s = BB R A B (Shenzhen Weike Communications
Technology Co., Ltd.*) and A T @ HEBE R FEER A A
(Shenzhen Furuide Communication Technology Co., Ltd.*)) since
2003. He has been the director of Zhong Shan City Richsound
Electronic Industrial Ltd.* since 2010. Mr. Liang was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company in May
2013.

Mr. Mak Ka Wing Patrick (“Mr. Mak"), aged 50, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director with effect 15
January 2009. He is a registered solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong and Managing Partner of Patrick Mak & Tse, Solicitors. Mr.
Mak has over 10 years' legal experience as a practising solicitor.
He was awarded the Common Professional Examination Certificate
in Laws by the University of Hong Kong in 1995 and was awarded
his Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (P.C.LL) by the University of
Hong Kong in 1998. Mr. Mak worked in Dublin, Ireland with
Messrs. Donald T. McAuliffe & Co., Solicitors of Ireland from 1990
to 1991 and worked in London, England with Messrs. Sparrow &
Trieu, Solicitors from 1991 to 1992.

Mr. Mak is currently a director of Asia Green Agriculture
Corporation which was incorporated under the laws of the State of
Nevada, USA. He is also an independent non-executive director of
FU JI Food and Catering Services Holdings Limited (stock code:
1175) and EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited (stock code: 117).

Mr. Mak was an independent non-executive director of Sinogreen
Energy International Group Limited (stock code: 1159) from 22 April
2010 to 31 August 2013, independent non-executive director and
non-executive director of China Kingston Mining Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1380) for the period from 6 February 2013 to 16 April
2013 and from 17 April 2013 to 13 June 2013 respectively.

*  For identification purpose only
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Under the extensive impact from the Internet, the market
witnessed the emergence of various smart concepts such as smart
wearable devices, smart TV, smart home and smart phone, as well
as a strong growth of 60% in the output of smart phones in the
PRC in 2013. As the upstream sector of these electronic products,
our MLCC business also enjoyed a valuable opportunity for
development. Thanks to the concerted efforts of our staff, our
MLCC business recorded a double-digit growth in revenue with
continuous improvement in gross profit margin. The Company
achieved a sustainable and healthy development which further
strengthened our position as a leading national brand in MLCC
products.

In 2013, the Group’s revenue amounted to RMB513.2 million,
representing a 23.9% increase from that of 2012. Profit after tax
attributable to shareholders of the Company recorded a loss of
RMB5.4 million for the year, representing an decrease in loss by
RMB2.8 million from that of 2012. The continuing operation
contributed an earning of RMBO0.9 million, which was increased by
RMB6.0 million from that of 2012. The loss per share for the year
were RMB-1.3 cents.

The Board did not recommend the cash payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

About our products: Our MLCC business achieved a rapid
development riding on the trends of the miniaturization and
integration of electronic apparatus as well as the integration of
SMT. In 2013, we adhered to our miniature product strategy by
focusing on the production of models 0402 and 0201, while
attending to the diversified demands for models 0603 and 0805.
We have far outpaced our competitors with our miniature and
super-miniature MLCC products which currently account for over
90% of our production.

Emphasizing on the main business: To capitalize on the opportunity
presented by the soaring mobile internet sector, the Group, in the
principle of specialization production, terminated the mobile phones
trading business and the battery business in 2013 to avoid any
intra-group related transactions. The relevant companies was
winded up and transferred to allow the management to focus on
the development of the MLCC segment.

2013FER



RERE BETETHRAORRER  BHTHE
WITESEFREE—DSRA - PE-FEH B8
FIE - TCL ~ /JORANKITHEBEBRGEER T 70% M
BREE - BPREE L OBRRMAITEREBERE
S UBOREARFEERE  BROEEH
B BIEEEXR -

BMESTE : 2013 FEBRERMISZEOTTE - BA
RIS hEREERR  ARBREHENME
BATE SR - EEEA [BERA - RE4 ] &Y
RE) - BBMERERE  HERREKKAFIN
BERE  BMERAKNIEE NE41% o

RFED IR ERA - T BB BN TR & FR K
AMEFERETHEBIE  Em&s EMKT
BHEZERNMENE  RUYBBELCEREDT
50% ' RE L - REREBOLA - MABKE
HH IR 2EHERLA) -

S REER T RS EREE  BEERFRBRAL
BY% RASIEFAREELETRENER
BHABFBERAN - AEEEFHE A
Thl- RBRUHERST  BERART ZHE_&
WETHFOFRRE  BREEOTEEAM R
fRBR | FEBRROBLERSS ©

Annual Report 2013

Choosing the channel: With the rapid development of smart mobile
phones, the concentration of the mobile phone sector was further
enhanced. The six major players in the market, namely ZTE,
Huawei, Lenovo, Coolpad, TCL and MI, accounted for a total
market share of 70%. The choices of customers also tended to
concentrate on the leading market players. Therefore, measures
for enhancing customer concentration, lessening management
difficulty and reducing operation costs were required.

In financing: Financial markets both at home and abroad were
volatile in 2013, and it was more difficult and costly for companies
to secure RMB financing. With the commitment to cost reduction
and guaranteed provision, the Group made active efforts to
diversify its financing channels and undertake cost-effective foreign
currency financing activities in a moderate manner. Our finance
cost recorded a significant decrease by 41%.

In order to minimize operating costs, efforts were made on
reducing costs in R&D and operation activities. More R&D efforts
were spent on substitute components from national brands used in
our product design, and up to 50% of our raw materials were
sourced from local suppliers in the PRC. In respect of sourcing
channels, the proportion of sourcing from agents was reduced,
while that of sourcing directly from manufacturers and purchasing
a full set of products or services was increased.

With continuous economic transformation and upgrade along the
coastal areas, manufacturers began to relocate their operations to
the inland. Meanwhile, as the inland economy witnessed sustained
improvement in recent years, the labour force started to move
back. The coastal areas experienced labour shortage for years. In
order to get rid of such plight, we implemented an upgrade plan for
our second base plant in Anhui province for full production
processes in time, aiming to quickly foster a “two-pronged”
manufacturing setup both along the coastal areas and in the inland.
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In order to improve the basic industrial capacity and promote
industrial transformation and upgrade, the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology (“MIIT") of the PRC launched the
“Specialized Projects for Strengthening Industrial Bases ( T 2385
¥ JH T #2)”in 2013. It further supported the development of
“industrial critical basic materials, basic core parts and
components, advanced basic craftsmanship and basic industrial
technology” by providing a better external environment,
government concessions and funding. In 2013, the Group was
recognized by the MIIT and the Ministry of Finance of the PRC as
one of the three model projects for strengthening industrial bases
(components category) and obtained a grant of more than RMB18
millions, which offered a great support to our R&D in basic core
parts and components.

In 2014, it is expected that the market environment will gradually
become clear with the continuous economic improvement in the
U.S. and the slow recovery of the European economy. The output
of mobile phones is anticipated to maintain a double-digit growth,
with the global output volume expected to reach 1.2 billion. The 4G
business as well as the smart wearable devices will see sustainable
development during the year.

Meanwhile, it comes to our notice that a clear and stable market
makes Japanese and Korean companies more aggressive as they
bring along more severe confrontations and challenges towards the
PRC national brands. The gross margin of our products is expected
to decrease to a certain extent.

In respect of our products, our MLCC business will continue to
follow the market trend for miniature and high frequency products.
Super-miniature MLCC products such as model 0201 will gradually
become a standard component of mobile internet products,
resulting in a soaring demand for such products. Customers will be
more concentrated on the mobile internet sector, which mainly
involves leading market players such as ZTE, Huawei, Lenovo,
Coolpad, TCL and M.

We will strive to complete the upgrade construction of our second
base plant in Anhui by the first half of 2014 and implement the
“two-pronged” manufacturing setup along the coastal areas and in
the inland. As such, we can mitigate the impact of labour shortage
on our operating results, and better address the consequential
problems such as quality assurance control issues as a result of
high staff turnover.
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In terms of costs, material price is expected to be stable, but
employment costs will increase to a certain extent. We intend to
enhance productivity by improving automation and craftsmanship,
so as to moderately offset the impact of increased employment
costs on our profit.

For R&D, we will improve core competence of our products by

increasing our investment in R&D, especially investment in super-
miniature MLCC like model 0201.

Chen Weirong
Chairman

16 July 2014
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In this year, we witnessed the rapid development of the mobile
internet industry, the emergence of smart wearable devices, smart
TV, smart home, smart phone and other smart concepts, as well as
a strong growth of 60% in the output of smart phones in the PRC.
Capitalizing on this valuable opportunity and thanks to the
concerted efforts of our staff, MLCC business recorded a double-
digit growth in revenue with continuous improvement in gross
profit margin.

For the Group's mobile phone trading business, in view of the
shrinking sales volume, decrease in gross profit, limited
management resources and other factors emerged in 2012, the
Board decided to close down the business for the year, and carried
out the voluntary winding-up process on 28 June 2013 in respect
of Hong Kong Weichang NER Co., Limited (hereinafter referred to
as Hong Kong Weichang), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
engaged in mobile phone trading business, and provisional
liquidators were appointed on the same day.

Meanwhile, despite the adoption of various measures by the
Company, the newly acquired battery business still recorded a loss
due to the unexpected adverse effects suffered by its business
operations and development resulting from certain external factors,
such as the new rules and requirements regulating enterprises
engaged in the production of lead-acid batteries issued by the PRC
government authorities. Given the fact that the business is no
longer capable of offering the Group relevant opportunities, on 15
November 2013, the Group entered into a share disposal
agreement with the original vendors, under which the original
vendors agreed to repurchase the entire equity interest in the
company operating the battery business. For details, please refer
to the notice of the extraordinary general meeting of the Group
dated 9 December 2013.
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As the voluntary winding-up process in respect of the subsidiary
engaged in mobile phone trading business was carried out on 28
June 2013, and the battery business was carved out from the
Group on 27 December 2013, unless otherwise specifically stated,
the following analysis will only focus on the MLCC business, which
is the Company'’s sole continuing operation.

In 2013, the revenue from the Group’s MLCC business amounted
to RMB513.2 million, representing a 23.9% increase from that of
2012. This was mainly attributable to the expansion of the MLCC
market share driven by the adjustment in marketing strategies
made by the Group’s management, with a focus on the PRC
market and the market of mobile internet terminal industry featured
by smart phones and tablet computers.

The gross profit margin of the Group’s MLCC business for 2013
was 16.4%, representing an increase of 1.8% from 14.6% for
2012. This was mainly due to the changes in product sales
structure resulting from the adjustment in market structure and the
opportunity for profit growth brought to the Company by the strong
sales of miniature and super-miniature MLCC products.

Other revenue and other net income of the Group for 2013 were
RMB15.8 million, representing an increase of RMB2.0 million from
that of 2012. This was mainly due to the increase in exchange gain
and the write-back of the bad debt provision for receivables.

The selling and distribution costs of the Group for 2013 were
RMB19.2 million, representing an increase of RMB2.6 million from
that of 2012, this was mainly resulted from the increased input
made by the Group to expand its market share in the mobile
internet terminal industry market which was in line with the shift of
MLCC sales to such market.

The management costs of the Group for 2013 were RMB39.2
million, representing an increase of RMB3.9 million from that of
2012, this was mainly resulted from the increase in non-recurring
expense.
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The research and development costs of the Group for 2013 were
RMB21.6 million, representing a 180.0% increase from that of
2012. The growth was mainly attributable to the initiative to
enhance the core competitiveness of MLCC by increasing input for
research and development of MLCC0201 high-end products and
new super-miniature products for mobile internet.

Other expenses of the Group for 2013 were RMB®6.3 million,
representing a 33.1% decrease from that of 2012. This was mainly
due to the write-back of bad debt provision for receivables.

The finance costs of the Group for 2013 were RMB4.5 million,
representing a decrease of RMB3.1 million from that of 2012. This
was mainly attributable to a greater focus on the implementation of
appropriate financing strategies and the effective control of finance
costs.

Income tax of the Group for 2013 amounted to approximately
RMB8.1 million, representing an increase of RMB1.7 million over
that of 2012. This was mainly due to the payment of income tax for
the government grants obtained in 2013.

The Group monitors its capital through gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated at the
sum of bank loans, trade and bills payables and other payables and
accruals (excluding deferred income, deposits from customers and
provision of warranty) less cash and cash equivalent. Capital
represents equity attributable to the owners of the Company
(excluding share capital). As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the
gearing ratio of the Group was approximately 28% and 34%
respectively.

The net carrying amount as at 31 December 2013 was RMB261.2
million, representing a decrease of RMB16.2 million from that of
2012. This was mainly due to: (i) depreciation of approximately
RMB32.2 million with respect to the Group’s property, plant and

equipment in the current period; (ii) the Group's new MLCC
production equipment and construction in process valued at
approximately RMB12.6 million; and (iii) the reduction of

production, office and other equipment valued at RMB0.4 million
as a result of the craving out of the battery business from the
Group on 27 December 2013.
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The Group's investment properties for 2013 amounted to RMB18.3
million, representing a decrease of RMB8.3 million from 2012. This
was mainly due to the slight decrease in property for lease.

The other intangible assets of the Group for 2013 amounted to
RMB1.2 million, representing an increase of RMBO0.1 million from
that of 2012. This was mainly due to the amortisation of intangible
assets associated with the Group’s SAP management software.

As at 31 December 2013, the net book values of trade and bills
receivables were RMB227.1 million, representing an increase of
RMB5.3 million from 2012. Excluding the effect of craving out the
battery business from the Group, the Group’s balance of trade and
bills receivables in 2013 increased by approximate RMB47.6
million, mainly due to: (i) increase in bills receivables; and (ii)
increase in revenue from MLCC business.

As at 31 December 2013, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables of the Group amounted to RMB12.8 million,
representing a decrease of RMB19.3 million from 2012, primarily
due to: (i) the decrease in prepayments to suppliers and prepaid
expenses; (ii) the decrease in indemnification asset receivable for
the original shareholders of the battery business after the business
was carved out from the Group on 27 December 2013; and (iii) the
RMB8.6 million decrease in input VAT subject to deduction for the
current period, including RMB4.0 million for the carved-out battery
business.

As at 31 December 2013, cash and bank balances and pledged
bank deposits of the Group were RMB182.4 million, representing
an increase of RMB93.7 million from that of 2012. This was mainly
attributable to the increased pledged bank deposits arising from
the issuance of letter of credits and bills receivables.
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As at 31 December 2013, the balance of the Group's trade and bills
payables decreased by approximately RMB11.1 million from that as
at the end of 2012. The decrease was mainly due to the fact that
the battery business was carved out from the Group. Excluding the
effect of this factor, the balance of the Group’s trade and bills
payables in 2013 increased by approximately RMB22.1 million
compared to that as at the end of 2012, mainly arising from the
bills payables of RMB16.5 million generated from the Group’s
internal transactions. The actual increase of RMB5.6 million in
MLCC business was attributable to the extended credit term
granted to the Group by some of its suppliers.

As at 31 December 2013, deferred income, accruals and other
payables of the Group amounted to RMB36.2 million, representing
a decrease of RMB9.6 million from that of 2012. This was mainly
due to the fact that the battery business was carved out from the
Group. Excluding the effect of this factor, the deferred income,
accruals and other payables of the Group for 2013 decreased by
approximately RMB1.5 million from that at the end of 2012,
principally due to the decrease in equipment related payables and
the reduction in salary expenses.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had outstanding bank loans of
RMB170.3 million, representing an increase of RMB25.7 million
from that of 2012, which was mainly used to replenish the liquidity
of the Company.

As at December 31 2013, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

As at 31 December 2013, the capital commitments of the Group
were RMB3.0 million, representing an increase of RMB2.9 million
from that of 2012, which was mainly due to the fact that the
equipment purchasing contracts newly entered into by the Group
during the year were yet to be executed.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had net current assets of
approximately RMB164.5 million, including current assets of
RMB504.7 million and current liabilities of RMB340.2 million.

Banking Facilities

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had aggregate banking
facilities of approximately RMB500.0 million, of which
approximately RMB370.7 million had not been utilized.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

In 2013, the Group's sales were mainly denominated in RMB, US
dollars and Hong Kong dollars, while its purchases were mainly
denominated in RMB, US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Japanese
Yen. The trade receivables denominated in US dollars and Hong
Kong dollars were greater than the trade payables denominated in
US dollars and Hong Kong dollars. Meanwhile, the Group is
exposed to risks in respect of trade payables denominated in
Japanese Yen, but is basically not exposed to risks in respect of
trade receivables denominated in Japanese Yen. In the event of
vigorous fluctuation of the exchange rate, foreign currencies risk
will exist to a certain extent.

STAFF

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group had a total of
1,187 staff, whose remunerations and benefits are determined
based on the market, state policies and individual performance.

EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited

(20)
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The Company is committed to achieving high standard of corporate
governance and has made every effort to comply with all relevant
code provisions as stipulated in the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited during the year. The Board believes that a high standard of
corporate governance is essential for safeguarding the values of
the Company. The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance practice and forms an opinion that the Company has
complied with the CG Code during the year ended 31 December
2013, save for the exception as stated and explained below.

The Board is responsible for setting the Group’'s business
objectives, devising strategic plans and operation policies and
overseeing the Group's performance. To enrich the Board's
expertise, skills, experience, diversity of perspectives and
independence, the Company has invited two experienced
individuals to serve as the independent non-executive directors so
as to better monitor the process of implementing remedial
procedures for a sound corporate governance. As at 31 December
2013, there were 11 members in the Board comprising 3 executive
directors, 3 non-executive directors and 5 independent non-
executive directors.

The executive directors of the Board participate in the Group’s daily
operation and management, convey the clear picture of the
direction, business objectives and goals of the Company to the
staff. They keep track of the performance of the senior
management with reference to the goals and objectives set by the
Board. The diverse backgrounds of the executive and non-
executive directors allow the Board to consider matters from
different perspectives. On the other hand, the independence of the
five independent non-executive directors serves the purpose of
check and balance in order to safeguard the interests of
shareholders as well as other stakeholders in the market. The
chairman of the audit committee possesses the necessary
professional qualification and expertise in accounting and financial
management as stipulated in the CG Code.
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During the year, directors’ training was arranged to cover four
major areas, namely, directors’ duties under the new Company
Ordinance, CG Code, revised rules concerning connected
transactions and Inside Information Provision under Part XIVA of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Each month members of the
Board are provided with a consolidated summary of data
concerning the performance and operation of the Group’s business.
The Board is in the process of selecting suitable candidate to
arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its directors and officers. The Board strives to comply with
the CG Code as much as possible so as to meet high expectation
of shareholders, and the public alike.

The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 6 to
10 of this annual report. The composition of the Board and the
Committees of the Board as at the date of this report is given
below:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman)
(Chief Executive Officer and member of
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee)
Mr. Jin Wenping
Mr. Wang Ye

Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Cheng Wusheng

Mr. Zhang Zhilin

Mr. Chen Hao

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman of Audit Committee and
member of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Liu Huanbin (Chairman of both Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee and member of Audit Committee)

Mr. Pan Wei (member of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Liang Rong (member of Audit Committee)

Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick (member of Audit Committee)
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On 25 January 2013, Ms. Shuang Mei resigned as a non-executive
director and a member of Remuneration Committee so as to
devote more time to her own business, Mr. Jin Wenping and Mr.
Liang Rong were appointed by the Board on 7 May 2013 as an
executive director and independent non-executive director of the
Company respectively. At the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 18 September 2013, Mr. Xu Chuncheng retired
from the Board and resigned from the post of chief financial officer
and Mr. Liao Jie also resigned as an executive director. On the
same date, the appointment of Mr. Wang Ye and Mr. Mak Ka
Wing, Patrick as an executive director and independent non-
executive director respectively was approved by shareholders of
the Company at the meeting. On 8 February 2014, the Board
appointed Mr. Ruan Ren Zhong as the new chief financial officer.

There is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship among the directors. The Company has received from
each of the independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee has assessed the
independence of all the independent non-executive directors and
the Board is satisfied with their independence.

The directors of the Board, appointed by shareholders of the
Company in the general meeting, are entrusted with the duties
including setting the business objectives of the Group, devising
strategic plans for the development of the Group's business,
monitoring the execution of the plans and assessing the
effectiveness and efficiency of the Company’s operation in
attaining the goals. The Board believes that clear and coherent
corporate values and standards can facilitate the management'’s
fiduciary duties of safeguarding the interests of the Company’s
stakeholders and creating values for the Company. Therefore the
Board has put considerable efforts on ensuring that the
management as well as the staff share the same values and
standards. The Board is also responsible for business activities like
acquisition and disposal transactions, connected transactions,
investments and capital expenditures and discuss the related
issues thoroughly.

The Board delegates the duties of daily operation and execution of
business plans to the Chief Executive Officer and senior
management under the Board’'s close supervision and constant
monitoring. The Board also carries out periodic appraisal on the
performance of the management and achievements of the preset
business goals.
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The articles of association of the Company, of which a copy has
been posted on websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited respectively, clearly lay out the proper
procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors. It also requires that at least one-third of the directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting provided that every director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years, which coheres with the requirements set out in the
Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules with respect to
the appointments of directors of a listed issuer. A retiring director
shall be eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting.
Besides, any new director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-election by Shareholders
at the following general meeting. All non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) of the Company
have been appointed for a term of three years from the date of
their appointments. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing the composition of the Board from time to time and
making recommendations to the Board with respect to enhancing
expertise, knowledge and experience of the Board members in
formulating the set of directives on running the business of the
Group.

The Board established three Board committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's
affairs. All Board committees are established with defined written
terms of reference which are available to shareholders on the
website of the Company and Hong Kong Stock Exchange. All Board
committees reported to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made.

Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee comprises five
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Chu Kin Wang,
Peleus (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Pan Wei, Mr. Liu
Huanbin, Mr. Liang Rong and Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee were to (i) review the
financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the staff responsible for the accounting
and financial reporting function or external auditor before
submission to the Board; (ii) review the relationship with the
external auditor by reference to the work performed by the auditor,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor; and (iii) review the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Company's financial reporting system, internal control system
and risk management system and associated procedures.
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, no Audit Committee
meeting was arranged. The committee had not taken a different
view from that of the Board regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors. The Group's
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2013 had been
discussed, reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2013, the Remuneration Committee comprised
4 members, namely, Mr. Liu Huanbin, Mr. Pan Wei and Mr. Chu
Kin Wang, Peleus, being independent non-executive directors, and
Mr. Chen Weirong, being executive director. Ms. Shuang Mei,
being non-executive director, resigned as a member of the
committee on 25 January 2013. Mr. Liu Huanbin was the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policies and structure and remuneration packages of the directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures to devise such
remuneration policy and structure that no director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration
packages.

The Remuneration Committee adopts the approach of making
recommendation to the Board on the compensation packages of
the directors and senior management with reference to the skill,
knowledge, experience and the tasks assigned and individuals’
performance and overall results of the Company. In determining
the remuneration package, the Remuneration Committee also
obtain reports, surveys and relevant information from external
sources for the competitive level of remuneration and market trend
for the directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee forms an opinion that the current directors’ fees for the
directors and remuneration for the senior management for their
duties and responsibilities undertaken were commensurate with
the market level.
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Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2013, the Nomination Committee comprised 3
members, namely, Mr. Liu Huanbin and Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus,
being independent non-executive directors and Mr. Chen Weirong,
being executive director. Mr. Liu Huanbin was the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee’s major
principal are to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or reappointment of directors according to the Articles
of Association. The Nomination Committee reviews the
composition of the Board whenever necessary to meet the
business demands, opportunities and challenges and to comply
with the laws and regulations. The Nomination Committee will
select and evaluate the balance of skills, qualification, knowledge
and experience of the candidate to the directorship as may be
required by the Company from time to time by such means as the
Company deems fit. The Nomination Committee shall consider the
candidate from a wide range of backgrounds, on his/her merits and
against objective criteria set out by the Board and taking into
consideration his/her time devoted to the position and
independence as independent non-executive directors.

Newly appointed directors would be provided with an induction so
as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Group and full awareness of
directors’ responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of such individual, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.
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Name of Directors

BREREE

Mr. Chen Weirong

RS L (R2013%1 A 25 BEHT)

Ms. Shuang Mei (resigned on 25 January 2013)
B E (201369 A 18 AEHT)

Mr. Liao Jie (resigned on 18 September 2013)
BEHEE (R2013F9 A 18 AET)

Mr. Xu Chuncheng (resigned on 18 September 2013)
PXCFRAE (201355 A7 AEZR)

Mr. Jing Wenping (appointed on 7 May 2013)
TEERA(R2013F9 A 18 BEERT)

Mr. Wang Ye (appointed on 18 September 2013)
BRESE

Mr. Cheng Wusheng

REMEAE

Mr. Zhang Zhilin

BELE

Mr. Chen Hao

BEEE

Mr. Pan Wei

(it

Mr. Liu Huanbin

KEREE

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus
REEAE(R2013F5A7REZA)

Mr. Liang Rong (appointed on 7 May 2013)
ERERE(R2013F9 18 BEZRT)

Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick (appointed on 18 September 2013)

Regular board meetings are held for directors to discuss and
determine the strategies of the Group, monitor the execution of
plans, review the Group's business performance and financial
reporting as well as all other material matters. Additional meetings
were held when significant events or important issues were
required to be discussed and resolved. Notice of the Board meeting
is given at least 14 days in advance to all directors, and the agenda
or all related document are prepared and dispatched to all directors
by the company secretary at least 3 days before the meeting to
ensure all directors have sufficient information and relevant
material when preparing for the meetings. The company secretary
is responsible for preparing and keeping minutes of all board and
committee meetings. All directors have full access to the advice
and services of the company secretary to ensure that the Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
Details of directors’ attendance at the meetings of the Board, Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out below:

el V8
BZ2013512A31ALEE
Attendance/Number of meetings
for the year ended 31 December 2013

ENZES HHZES RRZE®

- Audit  Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee

17 TER 11 10

N/A

0/7 AEHR on TEA

N/A N/A

417 TEA TNEA N F

N/A N/A N/A

477 TEA TNEA TER

N/A N/A N/A

5/7 TEA TNEA N f

N/A N/A N/A

2/7 MEA TNEA TERA

N/A N/A N/A

6/7 TER TER NEA

N/A N/A N/A

5/7 MEA TEA TEA

N/A N/A N/A

57 ¥l ¥l -
N/A N/A

477 - 7 NEA

N/A

6/7 - " 11

5/7 - 11 1N

47 TER TER TMEA

N/A N/A N/A

2/7 MEA TNEA NEA

N/A N/A N/A
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The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code states that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company does not
have a separate chairman and chief executive officer and Mr. Chen
Weirong currently holds both positions. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in the
same person provides the Group with strong and consistent
leadership, allows for more effective planning and execution of
long term business strategies and enhances the efficiency of
decision making process in response to the changing environment.

The increase in the total number of independent non-executive
directors from three to five adds to the independence of the Board,
which provides the Board with more independent judgment and
views from different perspectives to avoid possible conflict of
interests. The Board therefore believes that the improved
composition of the Board could strengthen the corporate
governance structure and provide the Company with better check
and balance. The Board will continue to review the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group’s corporate governance structure and
performance so as to assess whether any further changes are
necessary in the future.

Code provision A.5.4 of the CG Code stipulates that directors must
comply with their obligations under the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. In addition, the
Board should establish written guidelines on no less exacting terms
than the Model Code for relevant employees in respect of their
dealings in the securities of the issuer.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
governing the directors’ dealing in the Company’s securities.
Specific enquiry has been made of each director of the Board, all
directors confirm that they have fully complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for governing the securities transactions by employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company or its securities. No incident of
noncompliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
relevant employees was noted by the Company for the year ended
31 December 2013.
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Services rendered

B ARTS

Audit services

FEZBRT

Non-audit services

it
Total

The Board, with the assistance by the Group's Chief Financial
Officer, is responsible for overseeing the preparation of accounts
for each financial period with a view to ensuring such accounts give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
results and cash flow for that period. The Company's accounts are
prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards and the Board reviews those
accounting policies as selected and applied to ensure that
appropriate judgment and estimates be made in a prudent and
reasonable manner. The Board has received from the senior
management of the Company the management accounts and such
accompanying explanation and information as are necessary to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment for approving
the financial statements.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The statement about the reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the external auditors
of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 44 to 46 of this annual report.

CCIF CPA Limited are primarily responsible for providing audit
services in connection with the annual consolidated financial
statements of the Company. During the year, the total
remuneration payable to the Company’s external auditor amounted
to RMB1.4 million, with breakdown as follows:

B EAEA
Fee paid/payable

ARE14B8TT
RMB1.4 million
i

nil

ARE14EET
RMB1.4 million
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To address the issues associated with the internal control system
of the Group, the Company established a special board committee
(the “Special Committee”) in May 2012, which comprised all
independent non-executive directors, to look into the issues and
recommend remedial procedures to the board of directors of the
Company. The Special Committee appointed Shinewing Risk
Services Limited (“Shinewing”) as the internal control consultant to
review the internal control system of the Group and submit a report
of its findings and recommendations to the Special Committee.
Shinewing completed the interim review and issued an initial report
in November 2012 the Company began to implement a series of
remedial measures to strengthen the internal control system.

To remediate the underlying problems associated with the internal
control system of the Group and meet the requirements as stated
in the code provision C.2.1 and C.2.2 of the CG Code so as to
safeguard the Company’'s investment and assets, the Board
appointed Pan China (HK) CPA Limited (“Pan China”) as an
additional independent internal control consultant of the Company
to review and advise on the internal control procedures of the
Company and some of its subsidiaries. Shinewing resigned as the
internal control consultant of the Company with effect from 29 July
2013. Pan China was appointed to replace Shinewing to carry out
the review of the Group's internal control procedures for the year
ended 30 June 2013.

On 4 November 2013, Mr. Liang Rong and Mr. Mak Ka Wing,
Patrick, newly appointed as independent non-executive directors of
the Company at 7 May 2013 and 18 September 2013 respectively,
were appointed as members of the Special Committee.

In November 2013, Pan China finished its review of the internal
control systems of the Group for the period from January 2012 to
June 2013 and a copy of the report in this respect (the “Report”)
has been submitted to the Special Committee and the board of
directors for further review and discussion. The Special Committee
discussed the findings as noted in the Report, the corresponding
remedial measures and the progress of implementing those
measures with the board of directors. The Special Committee
noted that a follow up review should be conducted when the
remedial measures were substantially implemented.
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The Company's website remains the major communication
platform to provide its shareholders and potential investors with its
up-to-date information on the Company’s business activities and
development. The Company endeavours to abide by the practice of
timely disclosure of useful information with high degree of integrity
so that stakeholders of the Company can assess the performance
of the Company when making their business decisions.

The Company has adopted the policy of effective communication
with shareholders for promoting higher transparency of the
Company's operation activities and greater investors’
understanding of the Company's business. The Company’s website
contains up-to date information on the Company’s business
developments. The practice of timely disclosures of information
with high degree of integrity is consistently observed to allow
shareholders and any other parties concerned to make judgment.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides an important
channel for shareholders to exchange ideas with the Board. Notices
and circulars regarding the annual general meeting and other
general meetings are given in well advance to ensure that
shareholders have sufficient time and information to prepare for
the meetings. During the general meetings, the directors of the
Company will answer questions and queries raised by the attending
shareholders and the Board believes that such face to face
interaction with shareholders can promotion mutual understanding
between the Company and shareholders. The Company embarks
on arranging as many members of the Board to attend the annual
general meeting as possible. For the annual general meeting held
on 18 September 2013, 5 directors of the Company, namely Mr.
Chen Weirong, Mr. Liao Jie, Mr Jing Wenping, Mr. Cheng
Wousheng and Mr. Liu Huanbian, attended the meeting. The rest of
the Board were not able to attend the meeting as they were
engaged in either their business or personal schedules. The
Company will try to arrange at least a member of each board
committee to attend the annual general meeting in the future.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 47 to 48.

No interim dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2013 was declared. The Board recommends no final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 20183.

RESERVES
Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’'s reserves available for distribution as at 31
December 2013 amounted to approximately RMB416,985,000
(2012: RMB424,303,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and fixed
assets of the Company are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited
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The directors of the Company during the year and as of the date of
this report are:

Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liao Jie (resigned on 18 September 2013)

Mr. Xu Chuncheng (retired on 18 September 2013)

Mr. Jing Wenping (appointed on 7 May 2013)

Mr. Wang Ye (appointed on 18 September 2013)

Ms. Shuang Mei (resigned on 25 January 2013)
Mr. Chen Hao

Mr. Cheng Wusheng

Mr. Zhang Zhilin

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. Pan Wei

Mr. Liu Huanbin

Mr. Liang Rong (appointed on 7 May 2013)

Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick (appointed on 18 September 2013)

Ms. Shuang Mei resigned as a non-executive director of the
Company with effect on 25 January 2013 so as to devote more
time to her personal business.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, one-third of
the directors for the time being should retire from office by rotation
at every annual general meeting of the Company. Mr. Xu
Chuncheng, Mr. Liu Huanbin and Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus retired
from office by rotation at the annual general meeting held on 18
September 2013. Mr. Liu and Mr. Chu, being eligible, offered
themselves at the annual general meeting for re-election which
was subsequently approved by shareholders. Mr. Xu Chuncheng
decided not to seek re-election at the annual general meeting and
retired from the Board as an executive director effective at the
conclusion of the meeting. Mr. Xu also resigned from the post of
chief financial officer of the Company with the same effective date.
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During the year 2013, Mr. Jing Wenping and Mr. Liang Rong were
appointed as an executive director and independent non-executive
director respectively on 7 May 2013. Both of Mr. Jin and Mr. Liang
retired and were re-elected pursuant to the articles and association
of the Company at the annual general meeting. At the meeting, Mr.
Wang Ye and Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick were also appointed as an
executive director and independent non-executive director of the
Company respectively.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual written confirmation with respect to his
independence pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules. So far as
the Company is aware, all Independent Non-executive Directors
have no interest in the Company’s shares, underlying shares and
contracts relating to any business of the Group. Hence, on the
basis of the confirmations set out in the independence
confirmation, the Company considers all Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent.

Each Executive Director has entered into a service agreement with
the Company commencing for a term of 3 years until termination
by giving no less than 3 months’ written notice to the other party
or pursuant to the terms of the agreement. Executive Directors are
subject to the retirement and rotation requirements in accordance
with the Company's articles of association.

All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors have entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of 3 years. The appointment shall comply with the
retirement and rotation requirements in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association.

Save as disclosed above, no director has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is expiring within one
year or determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation). The
Company has no service contract with the directors with a term of
more than 3 years or not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s directors is determined
based on their respective terms of service agreement (if any). The
directors’ fee is reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee
and the board of directors is authorized by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting to approve the remuneration of the
directors. Details of remuneration paid and to be paid to the
Company's directors for the financial year ended 31 December
2013 are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the connected transactions as stated in the report, no
contracts of significance relating to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principles and practices of corporate governance of the
Company are set out under the section of “Corporate Governance
Report” on page 21 to 31.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands where the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders of the
Company.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
The biographies of directors and senior management are set out on
page 6 to page 10 in the report.
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At 31 December 2013, the directors’ interests and short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code") contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

HE 8T
IR 17 4R
BOBE DL
ZERHE HEEE Approximate
Number of ordinary shares BMHEE percentage of
BERER NG £ Number of total interests
EEHA Beneficial Corporate underlying me in the share
Name of Director Interests Interests shares Total in issue
BRIZREH - 143,044,000 1,400,000® 144,444,000 35.62%
Mr. Chen Weirong
FrESAE - 2,400,000% 1,500,000® 3,900,000 0.96%
Mr. Wang Ye
BRERE - 16,174,000? - 16,174,000 3.99%
Mr. Cheng Wusheng
REMEE - 23,106,000® - 23,106,000 5.70%

Mr. Zhang Zhilin
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[ 18 28 5t 4£ A 7% ¥ A Eversharp Management
Limited ([ Eversharp]) B # 77 I 4X100% * 1
Eversharp | & % # & EY SHINE Management
Limited (TEY Shinel) B E1TIRZ36.71% ° FR{E
& % & I8 & 7k % A Everbright Management
Limited ([ Everbright]) B % 7 B 4<53.15% - i
Everbright AJ# A EY Shine B 17824 19.40% ©
EY Shine® & ¥ %A EY Ocean Management
Limited ([EY Ocean]) 100% ' M EY Ocean# &
RATE 143,044,000 RIR D = - HBFRHBE
HRAIEXVEBME @ REREEWKRABREY
Ocean B WFIE RN PHEE o

15 L% (D B WUSHENG Management Limited AT
HE  BRESEBRBZ AR ETRARERE
= 100% °©

3E L PZ 19 A ZHILIN Management Limited AT
B REMEEEBZ AR D BHITRARERES
100% o

TEE A B ABEA Everbright B 3778 48.65% °
i Everbright & J% # B EY ShineE # 17 & &K
1940% At TAEBEEBEHBEARARFYH
2,400,000 AR5 °

EL AR RN 2007 11 B 30 B AR 4V BB A%

RERTEIT R B A i s - BARAERT BIRF ARSI
WA [BERHERT S —#f

M2013%412 8318 » &

ARREZRSRTRAR (BRERBR I8
AT FZO) FHBRBARER A AR B R EAEM[HE
BOEE(EER RER LB RAIZEXVER) RO -
RN REFOEMERZIORR

Notes:

(1

Mr. Chen Weirong legally owned 100% of the issued share capital of
Eversharp Management Limited (“Eversharp”), which in turn legally
owned 36.71% of the issued share capital of EY SHINE Management
Limited (“EY Shine"”). Mr. Chen Weirong also legally owned 53.15%
of the issued share capital of Everbright Management Limited
("Everbright”) which in turn owned 19.40% of the issued share
capital of EY Shine. EY Shine legally owned 100% of EY Ocean
Management Limited (“EY Ocean”) which was interested in
143,044,000 shares of the Company. For the purposes of Part XV of
the SFO, Mr. Chen Weirong was deemed to be interested in all the
shares held by EY Ocean.

These shares were owned by WUSHENG Management Limited of
which Mr. Cheng Wusheng had 100% equity interest of the issued
share capital.

These shares were owned by ZHILIN Management Limited of which
Mr. Zhang Zhilin had 100% equity interest of the issued share capital.

Mr. Wang Ye legally owned 8.65% of the issued capital of Everbright
which in turn owns 19.40% of EY Shine, therefore Mr. Wang was
indirectly interested in approximately 2,400,000 shares of the
Company.

These represented interests in the share options granted under the
share option scheme adopted on 30 November 2007, further details
of the share option scheme are set out in the section “Share Option
Scheme” hereof.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
directors nor the chief executives of the Company (including their
spouse and children under 18 years of age) had or was deemed to
have any interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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Name of Shareholder

BRIZER 4

Mr. Chen Weirong

EY Ocean Management Limited

EY SHINE Management Limited
Eversharp Management Limited
Legend New-Tech Investment Limited
Right Lane Limited

BRI R AR A A

Legend Holding Limited*
PERIEREEEELEBR AT

So far as the directors and management of the Company were
aware, as at 31 December 2013, shareholders (other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company) who had an interest
or short position in the Company’s shares or underlying shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

Chinese Academy of Sciences Holdings Co., Ltd.*

IR AR AR TS

Employees’ Shareholding Society of Legend Holding Limited

HEQ Management Limited
ZHILIN Management Limited
Mr. Xu Chuncheng

Annual Report 2013

LB 1T

RABEL

Aotk

Pt Approximate

BoEE percentage of

BaE Number of issued share
Notes shares held capital
1 143,044,000 35.28%

1 143,044,000 35.28%

1 143,044,000 35.28%

1 143,044,000 35.28%
2 26,910,000 6.64%
2 26,910,000 6.64%
2 26,910,000 6.64%
2 26,910,000 6.64%
2 26,910,000 6.64%
S 20,795,000 5.13%
4 23,106,000 5.70%
5 28,299,000 6.98%



B

ZEFRNTF] 2 143,044,000 B E @AY EY Ocean
Management Limited ([EY Ocean]) E&Z#H °
EY OceanJYEY Shine Management Limited([EY
Shinel) 2 & & M B 7 7]e Eversharp
Management Limited ([Eversharpl) & # # &
EY Shine® 17 B AN #936.71% # 2 » 1A EY
Shine B &R EMR D =59 2 —LA L ° Eversharp
MR ABEAEY OceanH B WIFT B RN S ©
RARMTEERTFERELLEEEHRE
Eversharp B BT A H) 100% #E s

Legend New-Tech Investment Limited ([ Legend
New-Tech|) & # # B 7~ A 7]26,910,000 % A%
5 o Legend New-Tech 7T & Right Lane Limited
([Right Lane]) 22 BB AR - B8ZIRBIR
A T A 3% % A Right Lane Limited & % 17 B A&
50% -+ JNE &R B {5 55 X 25 A # B Right Lane
Limited B & 1TIR AR T50% - MIELEERREK
B 782 AL A IR & B 19 {5 5E A #5 B Right Lane
Limited B 2 1TARAN25% © sREHE R KRB
B R A & # {5 5T A $5 A Right Lane Limited
BEITRAR25% - HERZREEEELEEIR
RAERHEBBEIERARA TS BITRG A2
H165% - B EIEIR AR AR TiFReaLES
#2 T 35% B BEITIRD ©

ZNRBHIEAARE 20,795,000 AL ¢ 5% A
RIAAESTEREEEE100% - TEBREE
EEERETARRES  WER2010F5A
INARTZARFRRBFASHERIRME -

2R B IEAALRE] 23,106,000 AV © 5%
ARIAARRFERITE R REMLEREF100% ©

R 45 38 C &£ & JK % B Everbright B 3 17 I &
11.89% * T Everbright Al] # A EY Shine & % 17
fE7N19.40% ° Bt - B EMBEFFARRAL
3,299,000 & & fn o R EME = A AR A
25,000,000 BE&RE (D -

B EXPTIREE N - RRABWARWAE A BIEMR
Hig NERAR BB SHARER PG AR

/N

AINERAEHIE  RAREBEESLAE

GPIFE 3B RN EFENESRLMATRCSEN R
K HEBARANIERR(EER ETR

ULk

53 ©

Notes:

1. These 143,044,000 ordinary shares in the Company were beneficially
owned by EY Ocean Management Limited (“EY Ocean”). EY Ocean
was a wholly owned subsidiary of EY Shine Management Limited
("EY Shine"”). Eversharp Management Limited (“Eversharp”) was
beneficially interested in 36.71% of the issued capital of EY Shine,
representing more than one-third of voting shares in EY Shine.
Eversharp was therefore deemed to be interested in all the shares
held by EY Ocean. Mr. Chen Weirong, the executive director and
chairman of the Company, was beneficially interested in 100% of
issued capital of Eversharp.

2. Legend New-Tech Investment Limited (“Legend New-Tech”) was
beneficially interested in 26,910,000 shares of the Company. Legend
New-Tech was also a wholly-owned subsidiary of Right Lane Limited
(“Right Lane"). B 7845 & B PR 2 &) (Legend Holding Limited*) legally
owned 50% of the issued share capital of Right Lane Limited and also
owned the remaining 50% of the issued share capital of Right Lane
Limited as a beneficiary of two trusts. Liu Chuanzhi was holding 25%
of the issued share capital of Right Lane Limited as a trustee for and
on behalf of Legend Holding Limited. Zhang Zuxiang was holding 25%
of the issued share capital of Right Lane Limited as a trustee for and
on behalf of Legend Holding Limited. P EIRIERE B EEL LR A
Al (Chinese Academy of Sciences Holdings Co., Ltd.*) beneficially
owned 65% of the total issued shares of Bt 81 G FR A A (Legend
Holding Limited*) and B 28 2 A% 5 [R A 7 B T 4% I& & (Employees’
Shareholding Society of Legend Holding Limited*) legally owned the
remaining 35% of the issued shares.

3. The company, which beneficially owned the 20,795,000 shares of the
Company, was 100% owned by a former director Mr. Li Hegiu who
did not seek re-election as a director of the Company and resigned
from his office upon the conclusion of the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 31 May 2010.

4. The company, which beneficially owned the 23,106,000 shares of the
Company, was 100% owned by Mr. Zhang Zhilin, a non-executive
director of the Company.

(5} Mr. Xu Chuncheng legally owned 11.89% of the issued capital of
Everbright which in turn owned 19.40% of EY Shine, therefore Mr.
Xu was indirectly interested in approximately 3,299,000 shares of the
Company. Mr. Xu was also beneficially interested in 25,000,000
shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of
any other person who had an interest or short position in the
Company’s shares or underlying shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange and as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO, or
was otherwise a substantial shareholder (as such term is defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Summaries of the share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) adopted by all shareholders of the Company on 30
November 2007 are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the movement of options granted under the Share
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2013 were as
follows:

R2013E R2013E
1818 12318
HASTE REH RHEE REH REH HARTE
BRTHEE  Outstanding RE AT RRK W%  Outstanding
RERSAENERAER Exercise asat Granted  Exercised  Forfeited  Cancelled asat ixid ]
Name or category of eligible it B price  1January during during during during 31 December Exercise
participants Date of grant per share 2013 theperiod  theperiod  theperiod  the period 2013 period
3
Directors
RERLE 200841 A22R 1.062/87 1,400,000 = - - - 1,400,000 *
Mr. Chen Weirong 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 ¥
TELE 200841 A 22R 1.062/87 1,500,000 - - - - 1,500,000 *
Mr. Wang Ye 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 ¥
et 2,900,000 - 2,900,000
Sub-total
BREEAS EER
HhRERSRE (BE) 200841 A22R 10527%7L 13,400,000 S - 1,500,000 - 11,900,000 *
Senior management, Employees
and Other qualifying
participants (in aggregate) 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 U
ay
Total 16,300,000 - 1,500,000 - 14,800,000

* BHEBSMAIRENZHIES0 -
BERDAGSZZH

B L AR AR 8IS - REFEAAR DR REAM
HIE R RRARR 2R DR HIER R B Z R
MERR XEEHREEARNEETHRBEA
DA AR ) B 5 MR

ESRNMPBEFPIER
AL A2 R (R B A
FHRHMS -
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*  Please refer to note 30 to the financial statements for details.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the above share option scheme, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or the holding
companies of the Company or any subsidiaries of its holdings
companies a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

The Company’s directors had no interests in any business that may
compete with the Group’s business.

EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
confirmed that it has maintained a sufficient public float in the
market as at the date of the report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed shares of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2013.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
During the year, the Company had no contract entered into in
respect of the management or administration of the overall
business or any material business.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION
The directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders of the Company by reason of their
holding of the Company’s securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year, the percentage of purchases from the major
suppliers of the Group to total purchases of the Group is as follow:

Percentage of purchases from the largest supplier

of the Group to total purchases: 20.5%
Percentage of purchases from top five suppliers
of the Group to total purchases 49.0%

No directors nor their associates have interests in the above
suppliers.

During the year, the percentage of sales from the major customers
of the Group to the total sales of goods and services of the Group

is as follows:

Percentage of sales from the largest customer of

the Group to total sales of goods and services 3.7%
Goods and services sold by the Group
to its top five customers during the year 15.4%

None of the directors, nor their associates or any shareholders
holding more than 5% of the share capital of the Company has an
interest in the customers referred to above.
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During the year the Group had entered into certain material
transactions with parties which were regarded as “Related Parties”
under the applicable accounting principles. Details of those related
parties transactions are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements. Some of these transactions which are considered to
be connected or continuous connected transactions under the
Listing Rules are further disclosed in following section “Connected
Transactions”.

Terms of the agreements

FEINTHFEB R 2 E BB AT ("SZ Eyang”) and Dongguan Eyang
Technology Development Co., Ltd. (“DG Eyang”) entered into new
leasing agreements with F I T {EBEHE B R A 7 ("SZ Eycom”)
on 1 January 2012 and 1 August 2012 regarding the premises
occupied by SZ Eycom and its subsidiaries (“New Leasing
Agreements”). On 1 January 2012 SZ Eyang and SZ Eycom also
entered a purchase agreement with respect to the supply of MLCC
products by SZ Eyang to SZ Eycom ("Purchase Agreement”). The
directors, including the independent non-executive directors, were
of the view that the terms of the New Leasing Agreements and
Purchase Agreement were in normal commercial terms and in
ordinary and usual course of business of the Company. The New
Leasing Agreements and Purchase Agreement fall under the
definition of continuous connected transactions pursuant to the
Listing Rules, and the maximum aggregate annual cap of both the
New Leasing Agreements and Purchase Agreement is
RMB13,129,000, which is more than 0.1% but less than 5% of the
applicable percentage ratios and therefore subject to reporting and
announcement requirements only in accordance with Rule
14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2013, the total rental paid under the New
Leasing Agreements and total purchase by SZ Eycom under the
Purchase Agreement was approximately RMB2,129,000 and
RMB5,913,000 respectively (2012: RMB1,993,000 and
RMB4,438,000 respectively).

Pursuant to the Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules the independent
non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and are of the opinion that the
above continuing connected transactions have been (i) carried out
in the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group; (ii)
conducted on normal commercial terms; and (iii) entered into in
accordance with the terms of the respective agreements.
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The Company’s auditor has also confirmed that the above-stated
continuing connected transactions (i) have been approved by the
Board of the Company; (i) have been entered into on terms of the
agreement of relevant transactions; and (iii) have not exceeded any
caps as set out in the agreements as mentioned here above
between SZ Eyang, DG Eyang and SZ Eycom.

The Company's original auditors Ernst & Young tendered its
resignation on 11 December 2012 with effective the same day. On
14 December 2012, the Board appointed CCIF CPA Limited as the
new auditors of the Company. CCIF CPA Limited was subsequently
re-appointed at the annual general meeting held on 18 September
2013.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
audited by CCIF CPA Limited. The auditors shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, but have agreed to offer
themselves for re-appointment. According to the advice of the
Audit Committee, a resolution will be proposed to the forthcoming
annual general meeting to re-appoint CCIF CPA Limited as auditor
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Weirong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 July 2014
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CCIF

CCIF CPA LIMITED
BRE RS EBAARAR

9/F Leighton Centre
77 Leighton Road
Causeway Bay Hong Kong
B RS ISRETTR
TSR

Independent Auditor’s Report to the shareholders of
EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EYANG
Holdings (Group) Co. Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 47 to 164, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.

As detailed in the auditor’s report dated 16 July 2014, we issued a
disclaimer of opinion on the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2012 due to the limitation on the
scope of the audit in relation to the trading of mobile phones (the
“Mobile Phone Business”). The Group recorded sales, costs of
sales and segment profit of RMB112,993,000, RMB109,130,000
and RMB1,819,000, respectively, during the year ended 31
December 2012. We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence about the sales of mobile phones to customers and
the corresponding cost of sales and segment profit during the year
ended 31 December 2012 because (i) there was inadequate
documentary evidence available for us to verify the delivery of
mobile phones both from the suppliers and to the customers; (ii)
there was inadequate documentary evidence available for us to
verify the identity of all customers; (iii) there was no satisfactory
explanation provided to us to explain the reasons for the bank
receipts of the Group totaling RMB30,543,000 and the bank
payments of the Group totaling RMB48,281,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2012 being transacted through intermediaries
for the settlement of the recorded sales and purchase transactions;
(iv) we were unable to carry out any effective confirmation
procedure in relation to the sales and purchase of mobile phones
for the purpose of our audit; and (v) we were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to verify the occurrence and
accuracy of these sales and purchases and there were no
alternative audit procedures that we could perform to satisfy
ourselves as to whether the sales and purchases transactions
recorded under the Mobile Phone Business during the year ended
31 December 2012 were free from material misstatement.
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Any adjustments that might have been found to be necessary in
respect of the above would have a consequential effect on the
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2012, the loss
and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Since
certain opening balances at 31 December 2012 formed the basis
for the calculation of the loss from discontinued operation for the
year and the corresponding cash flows, we were unable to
determine whether the loss from discontinued operation for the
year reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and the net cash flows from
operating activities reported in the consolidated statement of cash
flows and the related disclosures were free from material
misstatement.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of matter described
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of
the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Without further qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to an
allegation of false accounting regarding the Mobile Phone Business
of the Group (“the Allegation”) as more fully disclosed in note 2(b)
(ii) to the consolidated financial statements. A Special Committee
was set up by the Company to investigate into the Allegation.
According to the results of the investigation, there was no false
accounting identified in the Mobile Phone Business as alleged.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 16 July 2014

Kwok Cheuk Yuen
Practising Certificate Number P02412
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Continuing operation
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue and other net income

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Change in fair value of Net Contingent
Consideration Payable

Research and development costs

Profit from operations
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit/(loss) for the year from
continuing operation

Discontinued operations
Loss for the year from discontinued
operations

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year, net of nil tax
[tem that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations

Total comprehensive loss
for the year

20134

2013

B aE ARBTx
Notes RMB’000

6 513,150
(429,103)

84,047

7 15,786
(19,178)

(39,217)

(6,296)

33 -
8(c) (21,601)

13,541
8(a) (4,500)

9,041
9a) (8,132)

909

10 (6,282)

(5,373)

2,304

(3,069)

20124
2012
AREFIT
RMB’'000
(Fe&E75)

(restated)
414,143
(353,602)

60,541
13,846

(16,555)

(35,274)
(9,412)

3,610
(7,714)

8,942
(7,644)

1,298
(6,430)

(5,132)

(3,027)

(8,159)

(8,173)
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Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to owners of
the Company arising from:
Continuing operation
Discontinued operations

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
attributable to owners of
the Company arising from:
Continuing operation
Discontinued operations

Earnings/(loss) per share

From continuing and discontinued
operations
Basic and diluted

From continuing operation
Basic and diluted

From discontinued operations
Basic and diluted

P &

Notes

15

2013 §F
2013
AR®T
RMB’000

909
(6,282)

(5,373)

3,213
(6,282)

(3,069)

AR®A
RMB Cents

(1.3)

0.2

(1.5)

20124
2012
AREFIT
RMB’'000
(F&E75)

(restated)

(5,132)
(3,027)

(8,159)

(5,146)
(3,027)

(8,173)

AREAL

RMB Cents

(2.0)

(1.3)

(0.7)

The notes on pages 55 to 164 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to owners of the

Company attributable to profit for the year are set out in note 14.
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AR

RBEERE

EERERABAEE

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Prepaid land lease payments
Other intangible assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Due from related parties

Pledged deposits

Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities

Trade and bills payables

Deferred income, accruals and
other payables

Due to related parties

Tax payable

Bank loans

Dividends payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

B &

Notes

16
17
18
19
29(a)

21
22

23
37(c)

24
24

25

37(c)

28

2013 2012 €
2013 2012
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
261,167 277,415
18,296 26,625
19,853 20,341
1,170 1,025
3,771 2,891
304,257 328,297
76,907 110,363
227,129 221,873
12,823 32,080
5,474 10,869
128,411 40,677
53,941 48,018
504,685 463,880
108,336 119,440
36,211 45,849
2,400 40
22,732 28,155
170,275 144,599
254 256
340,208 338,339
164,477 125,541
468,734 453,838
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2013 F 2012 &
2013 2012
B 5E AR®T ARETF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
FREUTA Deferred income 27 20,732 2,138
EEMIBR G& Deferred tax liabilities 29(b) 6,031 6,010
26,763 8,148
EEFE NET ASSETS 441,971 445,690
BEARR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
k&N Share capital 32(a) 3,824 3,824
Bt Reserves 438,147 441,866
RATEB AELBEER TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 441,971 445,690

R2014F7 16 BEEE S EW TR o Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

16 July 2014
BRAZER o4 WIFRE
Mr. Chen Weirong Mr. Jing Wenping
o EF
Director Director

55 B % 164 BRI B KHREZN—3F The notes on pages 55 to 164 form part of these financial
e statements.
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2013 % 2012 4
2013 2012
B 5T AR®T T ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
kRBEE Non-current assets
S E S Property, plant and equipment 16 7 3
RB AR ZIKE Investments in subsidiaries 20 365,001 365,001
365,008 365,004
REEE Current assets
TEIFRIE ~ e R HA Prepayments, deposits and
PR GRIE other receivables 23 - 65
FE U B B A BI5RIE Due from subsidiaries 20(b) 75,407 85,437
B & MIRTTE R Cash and bank balances 24 696 402
76,103 85,904
REBEE Current liabilities
Hib N IB L EETE B Other payables and accruals 26 1,949 2,798
FET AR B Dividends payable 82 85
FERT B R R FUE Due to subsidiaries 20(b) 14,081 15,298
FE{T A& 77 kI8 Due to related parties 37(c) - 40
16,112 18,221
RBEEFE Net current assets 59,991 67,683
EEFE NET ASSETS 424,999 432,687
BEXR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
R% 7 Share capital 32(a) 3,824 3,824
B Reserves 32(b) 421,175 428,863
AATEEAELERER TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 424,999 432,687

R2014%F7 A16 HEZEES I EIIRKET)E - Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

16 July 2014.
PRIZE 4 W E L
Mr. Chen Weirong Mr. Jing Wenping
EE EE
Director Director
$55H % 164 B ERIL S EHEN—32 The notes on pages 55 to 164 form part of these financial
P © statements.
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KARHEEAELER
Attributable to owners of the Company
3 BhE EXRH
(S REE BHEHK 1 e  iERf  9EEA aEs
Share Share  Exchange
Share  premium Contributed option fluctuation  Statutory  Retained Total
capital account surplus reserve reserve reserve profits equity
AREFT ARETn ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2012F1 418 At 1 January 2012 3,824 104,657 198,939 4,785 2,962 36,268 92,960 444,395
EEER Loss for the year - - - - - - (8,159) (8,159)
BERINETR Exchange differences on
EHES translation of foreign
operations - - - - (14) = = (14)
FEXAERER Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - - - (14) - (8,159) (8,173)
RS aE Transfer to reserve = = = = = 1,667 (1,667) =
RERROEELTR Deemed contribution from
(F3£33) the shareholders (note 33) = S 9,468 S = S = 9,468
BREANEERER Transfer to retained profits upon
BERA forfeiture of share options = - = (225) = - 225 =
M2012%512 318K At31 December 2012 and
20131418 1 January 2013 3,824 104,657 208,407 4,560 2,948 37,935 83,359 445,690
FEER Loss for the year = = = = = = (5,373) (5,373)
BEFINETR Exchange differences on
EHES translation of foreign
operations - - - - 2,304 - - 2,304
FEREERAE Total comprehensive loss
for the year = = = = 2,304 - (5,373) (3,069)
BREEE Transfer to reserve - - - - 2,833 (2,833)
AREELSEIENTE  Deemed distribution to
(MizE34) the shareholders (note 34) = = (650) - - - - (650)
BREANEEER Transfer to retained profits upon
BEAR forfeiture of share options - - - (370) - - 370 -
R2013%€128 318 At 31 December 2013 3,824 104,657 207,757 4,190 5,252 40,768 75,523 441,97
BN BRI ST BHEAN—3 The notes on pages 55 to 164 form part of these financial

D W
o1
o1
o

o

statements.
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2013 F
2013
B aE AR®Tx
Notes RMB’000
REEE Operating activities
BRI AL, (EE) Profit/(loss) before taxation:
BB Continuing operation 9,041
eI R Discontinued operations (6,281)
R Adjustments for:
BhE A AR Finance costs 4,500
AN REERE Change in fair value of Net
NEED) Contingent Consideration Payable 33 -
FEUA Interest income (1,267)
N EEEFE Fair value losses, net:
PTET AR Derivative instruments
— NEEERE R Z — transactions not qualified
RS as hedges -
e Depreciation 32,785
+ it AR E A EIEEE Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments 488
HthmpEEgss Amortisation of other intangible
assets 189
fEUZ SRk CRIERE),”  (Reversal of impairment)/impairment
BEEE loss of trade receivables (2,731)
W R NEREMERRE  Impairment loss of property, plant
and equipment 2,326
FER Write-down of inventories 6,296
HEDE - BEMEEZ Loss on disposal of property,
518 plant and equipment 1,054
BURBE A - M= KRR Forfeiture of deposit paid for
ZENES acquisition of property, plant and
equipment -
46,400
BELELEE Changes in working capital
FEZRD (Ehm) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 26,076
FEUE 2 B8R 5k R FE UL Increase in trade and bills
SIRIE N receivables (4,694)
TEMFOR -~ ke R EAMm Decrease in prepayments, deposits
JE U R IE R and other receivables 2,475
FEs Bas@ A sRIE R Decrease/(increase) in amounts
(30) due from related parties 5,395
BB SRR RENEE (Decrease)/increase in trade and
CRi),/#hn bills payables (9,013)
IR A ~ FEETFIA K Increase in deferred income,
H fth fE A~ R IEIE H0 accruals and other payables 21,463
JE A< B 2 5 SR IEE N Increase in amounts due to
related parties 2,360
KEELE RS Cash generated from operations 90,462
B U F 8 Interest received 1,267
2R EFIE PRC tax paid (3,540)
RETHELE RS FHE Net cash generated from operating
activities 88,189

2012 €
2012
ARETTT
RMB’'000
(#=&E7)

(restated)

1,298
(1,140)

7,644

(3,510
1

161
32,446

488
172
908

1,903
8,240

133

1,100

48,450
(10,396)
(29,267)

12,277

(4,130)

13,868

3,330

40

34,172
613
(2,901)

31,884
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20135 20124F
2013 2012
B aE AR® T ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
(#eE5)
(restated)
REEE Investing activities
BEYE BMEMEKEZ Payment for the purchase of
N property, plant and equipment (10,325) (14,052)
BEELEE MR Payment for the purchase of
intangible assets (334) -
HEWE - BEMEHE Proceeds from disposal of property,
FT1S 508 plant and equipment 637 3,493
KE—M B aE HlE Net cash outflow arising on loss of
EEZRE R FEE control of a subsidiary 35 (159) =
WENBAREA RS Net cash inflow from acquisition of
MAFRR subsidiaries 33 - 885
HENBRAREEACRS Net cash outflow from disposal of
i FERR subsidiaries 34 (6,817) =
REZEMAZES TS Net cash used in investing activities (16,998) (9,674)
Al EEE Financing activities
FERITERZ B RIE Proceeds from new bank loans 264,274 348,401
BEIETER Repayment of bank loans (238,598) (465,392)
EARFLE Interest paid (3,069) (8,169)
B AR RZZEI B (Increase)/decrease in pledged bank
BB 3E A 2 B deposits with original maturity of
|ITER L), R over three months when acquired (28,709) 109,581
BEEE AR S EE Net cash used in financing activities (6,102) (15,579)
HERBEEESEYW2EMFEE Netincrease in cash and
cash equivalents 65,089 6,631
MR1A1B 2B ERERLZEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
1 January 77,104 70,487
HNEEZRSE2HE Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes (141) (14)
R12A3MBzHEeRES Cash and cash equivalents at
Z£EY 31 December 142,052 77,104
RENREEEBYERDN Analysis of balances of cash and
cash equivalents
He RIBITHE Cash and bank balances 24 53,941 48,018
e YNSIE N = Pledged bank deposits with original
TR IEAzE KA maturity of less than three months
BITFER when acquired 24 88,111 29,086
REESRERERIIERZ Cash and cash equivalents as stated
HeRBEESEEY in the consolidated statement of
cash flows 142,052 77,104

55 B % 164 BN R E8 %8Rz —3F The notes on pages 55 to 164 form part of these financial
e statements.
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FhEER(EE)BRAB(TEARAF ] R
2007F3H6 R EHSHEREFNENS
EPIE 22 RANE(1961 FEIRIER
AP REIEE]) MR L AR EBRA
A) o AN &) 2 7l $ = &R & Codon Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited 2 ## & & -
H# ik A Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands * MZANA R Z B9 E 5 &
FEZFEWEANRR BRI TELES
FfiiEFXEIL R ZREBERIEIWR
FEKRE -

ARBZEBEBRREER - HER T
ZEBEEFHERN I RRMEE20

I EM BRI EREERYEREE
A (TERR M s 2R ) RS - B4
BRDALEMHER ST EEZES S
(BEREHEEZRBE]) f/EZ £
R2BANHEREHEIRESH]
EBEREHEAREHRERES
2 WIRREEQAED 2 WER
EmE - L ERBHRENCEKE
BHMARZMERABES LR
QD2 38 R R 1R - N B TR
ZEBESHBRBEHIIAOT

B HEEZ B BME TR
MERTBIRR A s 2R R i e
A EAREE MARBNE TS H]
B B R A R A] AR P AR RO ZE A
MIFESRIAA T BRE MG ERIFTE
EREEFTRRES  HATHERARE
BRI BEmR D ARREEFT BT
S HAMEEE -

EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 6 March 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised). The Company’s registered office address is the
office of Codon Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands, and the head office and the
principal place of business of the Company are located at
EYANG Building, No.3 Qimin Street, No. 2 Langshan Road,
North Area, Hi-Tech Industrial Park, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen, the PRC.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 20 to the financial statements.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs"”), which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB"), and the International
Accounting Standards and Standing Interpretations
Committee Interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Committee that remain in effect,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
which are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from the initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in the financial statements.
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(i)

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”).

[tems included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and the
functional currency of the Company is RMB.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the contingent consideration and the
derivative financial instruments are stated at the
fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.
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(ii)

HZE2013F12A31BILFE -
GE—EERAEEBR B F K
BoXEB([BHFHRERD B
SRR B AsE R ([d89E D) -

EE2 RN2013F4A30H #
Mo ARRZARMEBERES
REBERBFREBBERE
ZZEIE - R2013F 4 A 25 B
BERETME  ~EBEBHTF
WEBHARE 2 —FHBAR
Al IBAREHERERA
AI(&BRE]D - onnﬁs
AZE2012F3 AHfEKE -
RIWEDERE -

ARRERLEZTEEMES

e2([BEMZEE])  WE—M
REEDERBEMBHE T
EBEALE  2ZXE(FH)E
TRV TAER AR ZELMHA
B RS - WK 20134
1M AEKAE - EFIEEEF
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— BERRMRENED

FREZFEBLELR
WEFE S

— BRBEMEENED

FREZFEBLEER
{E f] R B OA Il K 4 B AR
Ak, SHHRE

— BITFREBNEEH

BRmEENEREM -
VTERHEEENES
REEEFEEL

(ii)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there
was an allegation of false accounting regarding
the trading of mobile phones (the “Mobile Phone
Business”) of the Group (“the Allegation”).

On 30 April 2013, the board of directors was
informed that the company secretary of the
Company was arrested by the Hong Kong Police
on 25 April 2013 in connection with false
accounting with respect to the Group’s Mobile
Phone Business which was operated by a
subsidiary of the Company, Hong Kong Weichang
NER Co. Limited (“HK Weichang”), for the period
from August 2011 to March 2012. The company
secretary was released on bail.

A special board committee (“Special Committee”)
was set up by the Company and carried out
investigation with the assistance of an
independent PRC law firm and made reference to
the internal control review report issued by Pan
China (HK) CPA Limited and completed the
investigation in November 2013. The Special
Committee concluded that:

—  No fraudulent trading occurred in the mobile
phone trading business conducted by HK
Weichang;

—  The operation of the mobile phone trading
business conducted by HK Weichang did not
contravene any PRC laws and related rules
and/or regulations;

—  The Mobile Phone Business conformed to
the international practice regarding sale and
purchase of goods and fell within the
threshold of normal and reasonable business
activities commonly practised in the PRC;

2013FER



(i) (4&)

— BBTFHEBNHEERE
BEANEEEEETE
PR £ 1 | 17 FE PR R
BREAPTEE - BARA
BERBTEHTFHER
MEIEEFEBERE

RESHEREZBHELR -
ADAEEERADARIE
— 5178 -

201346 A28H - A&EEB
B-RERTERKBEHER
ZEMRER YO ERERR
A REFBBAR  ARQF
EERRAREECKREHTE
B2 EHHE - 5201346 A
28R BRBRZFEE &
E BEMRSZRITBEHA
RAEMBEHRT - BHEFBEH
AEE10

R2014F6 A13H » E=EH
KRR ZRARIWEREL B
25 R2014F6 A12H B f#
B (RIE N T AR AR IR ©

B AR AREEG ZERE - fi
AEETER2EEREENZHT
B[O 10 R B R R S NIIA R A B
HERERERIMTZEEHOR
AR EE E AR - REHEAR
CSEETHAENE  EEEELE
M(AAEEREMESIHE) °

Annual Report 2013

R 5 R 7R Pl &

H ZE 20134 12 A 31 H LEF [ For the year ended 31 December 2013

(ii)

(continued)

— The problems associated with the Mobile
Phone Business resulted from inadequate
supervision from the management and
apparent defects in the internal control
systems. However, there was no evidence
showing any integrity problem of the
management of the Mobile Phone Business.

The board of directors of the Company considered
that based on the investigation results of the
Special Committee, no further actions should be
taken.

On 28 June 2013, the Group passed a written
resolution for the voluntary winding-up of HK
Weichang and liquidators were appointed. Upon
the appointment of liquidators, the directors of the
Company considered that the Group had no
power to control HK Weichang. The results,
assets, liabilities and cash flows of HK Weichang
were deconsolidated from the consolidated
financial statements from 28 June 2013. The
details are set out in note 10.

Subsequently, on 13 June 2014, the Board was
informed by the company secretary of the
Company that on 12 June 2014, Hong Kong Police
had removed his bail and released him
unconditionally.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.
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An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss (see note 2(i)).

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
values, except that:

o a deferred tax asset or liability arising from the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a
business combination and the potential tax effects
of temporary differences and carryforwards of an
acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise
as a result of the acquisition are recognised and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income
Taxes;
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° assets or liabilities relating to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits; and

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below);

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’'s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity's net assets in the event of
liguidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
IFRS.
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Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates in accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, or IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e.
the date when the Group obtains control) and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

2013FER



HEBAGZ NI T RIENA G
2 REMRERTH - AIREER
EARTREFEE 2R B R B -
ZEHER RSN ESRR(RLX)
TUHE  MERBENEELEE
AR BRTA W B A B 15 72 1 45 P AR
R EZACERBR I EERB/N
IS ZHHE °

BRAEZTIRIN  M% - BERRET
BAERE REHTE RAEFIRER
BYIR(RHEE20) - WE - BB R
REBANARBEEBEEREMNS
ZREEEZEERRAEE 2 EEH
E RS R 2 R ERT A o

ME - BERRERBERAERR
FRELINEERFRESRS —REE
HZ RTINS - HEERT & FER
&t EXREZRAXAIREERE
ERFTEARUMERE - Y% - #as

REZEIBHMOFOREER - KA
EeER%EHoABERENRER
R Z BRIEE -

Annual Report 2013

R 5 R 7R Pl &

H ZE 20134 12 A 31 H LEF [ For the year ended 31 December 2013

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised to reflect
new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
at that date.

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses
(see note 2(i)). The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciation.



5 R 2R Pl &

HZE 20134 12 A 31 H LEFZ For the year ended 31 December 2013

WEDIZERNME - BRERZHEIEE
2 fhEH A B EHALA B 4R A M S E A A
BEEEMGRE - B Z @AM
BAFEHMpEDT :

EF Buildings

R K es Plant and machinery
PNE R EM R Office and other equipment
B Motor vehicles

D*ﬁ%% B R BB 2 HEH

DHEETRZAREY  ZEEZ
W$§Mé@%%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ—%%
DRIFTE - #1ME - TRFHRITET
ERDBNEME RN RIETE
TR

WE - BEERERE (BEERY
R EEZID) R ERBEHE
R EBREE TEEERKLE
MEREF ZIFRRERR o MR HEREED
EEERERZ L EREEEZ W
BHBE - HEMEELEMBSIUR
FREREERE R -

FRTRIEERD ZHER#ESE X
BEAEREREEBRYIR R
E-mARRERMEMEL CEE
FIERAN o BIR B FERE A fEREE A
w5 ZBRBRHERTREREY
X BERRBETNEEZNHE -

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal estimated useful lives and residual
values used for this purpose are as follows:

fhat A A BR{E

Estimated useful lives Residual values

40 years or over 10%
the remaining term of
the lease, if shorter
40 F R EFIRFH
(AREEA%E)

5-10 years F 10%

3-10 years 10%

4-10 years 10%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at the
end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the profit or loss in
the period the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plant and
equipment under construction, which is stated at cost
less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during
the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use.
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Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note
2(h)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. Such properties are initially measured at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of 40 years.

Any gains or losses from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 2(t)(ii).

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its carrying amount at the
date of change in use. If a property occupied by the
Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment” up to the date of
change in use.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as
at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the
end of each reporting period.

The following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for use
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

—  computer software 10 years straight line
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An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments of
such assets are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates
which write off the cost of the assets over the
term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the
Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life
of the asset, as set out in note 2(e). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy as set out in note 2(i). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are charged
to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as
to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.
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(iv)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged as expenses in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lumpsum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of
the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land
that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid land lease payments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.
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(i)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognized as follows:

—  For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’'s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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(ii)

Impairment of trade and other receivables
(continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset's carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
and bill receivables whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— investment properties;

—  prepaid land lease payments;

— otherintangible assets; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial position.
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(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e., a cash-generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying amount of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).
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(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
—  Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Derivatives are recognised initially at fair value. At the
end of each reporting period, the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of
resources to complete the project and the ability to
measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.



5 R 2R Pl &

HZE 20134 12 A 31 H LEFZ For the year ended 31 December 2013

& E 2 3R R Bt R M IR V) iR
RNFEER - RRERERMNEER
B AR R RBERET R (R K
AE20)) - MM A IR T AR E T 1R
2 % BB E I A EE R K
SR FEBUTERRBERISN -
ZEBRT - EUWERIR TR AR R
FORERHEYIRR

FEERONFRATEREIERHK
AHER - RYIFHERR 5T BEKTY
REHEKA RS ER SRR ERER
HIN B s TR 2 fE D B E 2 R e (]
Z8 EREMENMNERER &
RERANZEFIRR

e B 2B R R B AL N SRV PR
RNFAEHER - i E AR R R S AT
B BRIFMRZFEBYTEKN - £
BT RIRE AT -

Be RS EMRIERITERRTF
IR RIRITREMESRIEE2E
HTFFR 0 DA A] BE RS B AR A] AN EUFE
Z2EBEEAREERAKRZEH 5
MBS E (EEARERISHAT
WBE=EA) -

il RPESEANNREHRKENR
STEIZ AR
e FER2 BFFR-
FERBRING B2 R R %
HIFERBANKA  HERE
REUEBBERBOFEARE -
WERNHAEEMTEBE
K S BIREREDIR

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.
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(ii)

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”) of the Company.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted. The
fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is
recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled
transactions where vesting is conditional upon a
market or non-vesting condition, which are treated
as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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(ii) Share-based payment transactions (continued)
Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the
original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based
payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards
are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is
reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share.

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided that those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that
is, those differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.



5 R 2R Pl &

HZE 20134 12 A 31 H LEFZ For the year ended 31 December 2013

BRI AL FRERAERA
I EE BRERLEESR B
BEMTHNBERLEE LR
IR « EERIERERAEY
TEERSH -

AEBEENEREPRFHELTHIR
BEZREE - WRAKEEHRTE
R REJETS R SUIE AR W I R AR 4N 4E A
BEHZ  RETHAREZREE
FeRE : EfE B RXATRESRE
MERVAE - BRBAESRELD -

B2 IR BLS MR SNE £ R FTIS BIR X
AR B2 B AR R RERR

ERIRRERIRSSR R EEBRE D
RPN - S HA T o &5 MEE
MREEER AR AR ANEEBEE
TTREREAE HI IR B E R A TR IR
BfE XRFAUTHHEE2ZER
N A RIAS B $H E Al SR AR IR
BE:

— BEMREBEREREEMS
ADASAEEF B EEE
BEE  FEBEEZEER
BEZEE &

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or
the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or
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— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group
on certain products are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs and
returns, discounted to their present values as
appropriate.
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Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(i) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(i) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

(i) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
and

(iv)  commission income, when services are rendered.

Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. All
differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on retranslation of
a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on
items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of foreign operations outside Mainland China
are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of subsidiaries operating outside
Mainland China are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of subsidiaries operating outside
Mainland China which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the consolidated statement of financial
position, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
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Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented on the face of the statement
of profit or loss, which comprises:

the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i)~ One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).
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b) (#&) (b)  (continued)

(i) MEEBHAR-—%= (i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
FHEERT third party.

ivi —EBEBAR—S=714 (iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
BNl ME—EBA and the other entity is an associate of the
F—E=FREEQT o third entity.

v) ZEBRASENEAR (v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
SERETNERNE for the benefit of employees of either the
SREEEENETE - Group or an entity related to the Group.

(Vi) ZEBR@FAIALTE (vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
il 2 B I o by a person identified in (a).

(vi) B@OFFAMAL HE (vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
BEEATELEZE influence over the entity or is a member of
B(RZERETAR) X the key management personnel of the entity
ZEREAE (or of a parent of the entity).

ZATHRELRKE-IEE Close members of the family of a person are

HEEBARABER - FHEA those family members who may be expected to

HEIZIANTRZEZENRE influence, or be influenced by, that person in their

KA o dealings with the entity.

LED R RIS RER AR E A S Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
DEEESHEIINEHRNAEERES item reported in the financial statements, are identified
S(ETBEERELE)REUARAE from the financial information provided regularly to the
BZIBEEB ML EAERRDGETER Group's board of directors (the chief operating decision
DB RRIBTFENOTEER P maker) for the purposes of allocating resources to, and

assessing the performance of, the Group's various lines
of business and geographical locations.

MR EMS - ERIERELE DS Individually material operating segments are not
W AFLLAEE  BRIEZEDELEFIE aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
LA B - DA R B dm R BR 7 1 segments have similar economic characteristics and are
B AERRFEES BEREERIKE similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
B RAUDHERIREHRBE 2N the nature of production processes, the type or class of
REERRHUEE FEAU - BISE customers, the methods used to distribute the products
Rlam o MEFEZAID BRI or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
WIERABIEROLEE DA FUE environment. Operating segments which are not
go individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.
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Amendments to IFRSs

BIBR = E R ZE 1 5% (1BRTA)

Amendments to IAS 1

BIBR A TS S 2 RIZE 7 9% (BET A)

Amendments to IFRS 7

BUR B R 5 A2 RSB 109K
E11RRE 1258 (BRI A)

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 11 and IFRS 12

I R B 75 S 5 R 28 10 5%

IFRS 10
BIFR I H 3R 5 R RIS 11 5%
IFRS 11
BAFR I 5 3R o5 R RIS 12 5%
IFRS 12
BFR B 5 ¥R o5 AR RIS 13 5%
IFRS 13

BIRR & ET2ERIZE 195k (72011 F4&{E3E])
IAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

BIRR & st 4RI 2 27 5% (7R 2011 48 E3ET)
IAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

BIRR & 5T 4R 28 28 5% (70 2011 48 E3ET)
IAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

BB mERELZESREF 205,
(IFRIC)-Int 20
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The Group has applied the following new and revised IFRSs
issued by the IASB.

B % B 755 ¥ o5 2E Bl 2 4R J2 AU (2009-2011 38 H3)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

Ht 2 EWRER 2 27

Presentation of Iltems of Other Comprehensive Income

BE —HiHeREERSREE

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
mEBEmE  fERERKEAMMERES - BEES

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance

rEe Wk

Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

Joint Arrangements

BEHME SRR

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

AF(E B

Fair Value Measurement

EERA

Employee Benefits

VAR T

Separate Financial Statements

REERRIREERARICRE

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

BREAEERE 2 HERK AR

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

The Group has not applied any new IFRS that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period. Except as
described below, the application of new and revised IFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in the consolidated
financial statements.
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The amendments require entities to present separately the
items of other comprehensive income that would be
reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions
are met from those that would never be reclassified to profit
or loss. The presentation of other comprehensive income in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the financial statements has been
modified accordingly. In addition, the Group has chosen to
use the new title “statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income” as introduced by the amendments
in the financial statements.

IFRS 10 replaces the requirements in IAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements relating to the preparation
of consolidated financial statements and SIC 12 Consolidation
— Special Purpose Entities. It introduces a single control
model to determine whether an investee should be
consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity has power
over the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and the ability to use its
power to affect the amount of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 10, the Group has changed
its accounting policy with respect to determining whether it
has control over an investee. The adoption does not change
any of the control conclusions reached by the Group in
respect of its involvement with other entities as at 1 January
2013.

IFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual IFRSs with a
single source of fair value measurement guidance. IFRS 13
also contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair
value measurements for both financial instruments and non-
financial instruments. To the extent that the requirements are
applicable to the Group, the Group has provided those
disclosures in note 17. The adoption of IFRS 13 does not
have any material impact on the fair value measurements of
the Group's assets and liabilities.
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The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

In the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

(ii)

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its investment property portfolio. The
Group has determined, based on an evaluation of
the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
that it retains all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of these properties which are leased
out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property
qualifies as an investment property, and has
developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both.
Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the
Group.
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(ii)

Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties (continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out
separately under a finance lease, the Group
accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property
basis to determine whether ancillary services are
so significant that a property does not qualify as
an investment property.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

(i)

Useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment (Carrying amount:
RMB261,167,000 (2012: RMB277,415,000))

In determining the useful lives and residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment, the
Group has to consider various factors, such as
technical or commercial obsolescence arising
from changes or improvements in production, or
from a change in the market demand for the
product or service output of the asset, expected
usage of the asset, expected physical wear and
tear, the care and maintenance of the asset, and
legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is based
on the experience of the Group with similar assets
that are used in a similar way. Additional
depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives
and/or the residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment are different from the
previous estimation. Useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at the end of the reporting
period based on changes in circumstances.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Deferred tax assets (Carrying amount:
RMB3,771,000 (2012: RMB2,891,000))

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference and losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.

Impairment assessment of long-term assets
(Carrying amount: RMB300,486,000 (2012:
RMB325,406,000))

The Group assesses at each reporting date
whether there is an indication that long-term
assets may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the Group makes an estimate of the
recoverable amount of long-term assets. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of long-
term assets. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from long-term assets and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value
(Carrying amount: RMB76,907,000 (2012:
RMB110,363,000))

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value
is made based on the estimated net realisable
value of inventories. The assessment of the
required write-down amount involves
management'’s judgement and estimates. Where
the actual outcome or expectation in future is
different from the original estimate, such
difference will have an impact on the carrying
amounts of inventories and the write-down
charge/write-back amount in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.
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v) BRESRAREKEESR
BERE(REE: ARK
233,803,0007C (20125 : AR
#%242,006,0007T))
AEBEREERERERT
B BTG R T U Bl FE U E 5
BRFX - Hib e B K E UK 8
B RIB - LA A R E B
# HEPE2EE G REH
B o i IR E GRS R
BMBAREIRE AL AlE
FLEUE SRR - H b B
B I & U R 3 5 3R OB B
#- 2B AR RNEL G
B AEEZERrERKES
BRFX - Hib B IB R B UK 8
ERRBEZEREEE QLT E
PEETE S ERE 2 REBE -
AN B AR & B R S T AT
1o

REDHRIREAEBERLIEH ZA
HHREELEZT - TELERKREEER
Kigil 2 EEF  WETERDEMRRA
Al TERERREHEETSREE -
EREARENEBRDARERES -
AEEFED BAR AR ERBEL
H IR 2 B mm PAc g 2 R K2 B ¥R 35 A R
MREAMD L - REBEHEA LT =E7 £ &
D ER - BE S GHEL L D B AEK AT 2
B o

— ARAZEMEBAR(MLCC)HH
1 = &3 I 85 & MLCC X MLCC B

=

(v) Impairment of trade receivables and amounts
due from related parties (Carrying amount:
RMB233,803,000 (2012: RMB242,006,000))

The Group estimates the provisions for
impairment of trade receivables, other receivables
and amounts due from related parties by
assessing their recoverability based on credit
history and prevailing market conditions. This
requires the use of estimates and judgements.
Provisions are applied to trade receivables, other
receivables and amounts due from related parties
where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible.
Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will affect the
carrying amounts of trade receivables, other
receivables and amounts due from related parties
and thus the impairment loss in the period in
which such estimate is changed. The Group
reassesses the provisions at the end of the
reporting period.

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal
reports which provide information about components of the
Group. These information are reported to and reviewed by
the chief operating decision marker (“"CODM?") for the
purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment. The identity of CODM is the board of directors.
The CODM considers the business from a business activity
perspective. Each of the Group's segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers products which are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of the other
segments. The Group has the following three reportable
segments. No operating segments have been aggregated to
form the reportable segments.

— the multi-layer ceramic chips (“MLCC") segment
engages in the manufacture and sale of MLCC and the
trading of MLCC;
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— the trading of mobile phone segment engages in the
trading of mobile phones; and

— the batteries segment engages in the manufacture and
sale of batteries.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s CODM
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets,
non-current assets and current assets that are directly
managed by the segments. Segment liabilities include all
current liabilities and non-current liabilities attributable to the
activities of the individual segments and including bank
borrowings managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments. To
arrive at segment results, the Group allocated income and
expense to those segments but excluded interest income,
finance costs and change in fair value of Net Contingent
Consideration Payable.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment result, the Group’'s CODM is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
sales), interest income and expense from cash balances and
borrowings managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and additions to non-
current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations. Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted
with reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the prevailing market prices.
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BEAEER 2R EB2E R K& EEB R Information regarding the Group's reportable segments and
FRANFAELRE B 2 HRYRAT - the reconciliation to the corresponding consolidated totals in

the financial statement are shown below.

BELSEXR RIEREXK 7R
Inter-
Continuing segment
operation Discontinued operations elimination
RASERE
EA% BBFHEZR Eit At At
Trading of
mobile
MLCC phones Battery Sub-total Total

ARBTR  ARMTR  AR®TR ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

AEE Segment revenue
HETIHARRE Sales to external customers 513,150 - 38,612 38,612 - 551,762
il Inter-segment revenue - - _ _ - _
513,150 - 38,612 38,612 - 551,762

PHEE Segment results 12,309 - (6,316) (6,316) - 5,993
HHE Reconciliation:
FBMA Interest income 1,232 - 35 35 - 1,267
BERK Finance costs (4,500) - - - - (4,500)
B HtATAE Profit before taxation 9,011 - (6,281) (6,281) - 2,760
ANEEREELR Segment assets and total assets 808,942 - - - - 808,942
INEEREBLE Segment liabilities and

total liabilities 366,971 - - - - 366,971
HitpHER Other segment information:
BERL Write-down of inventories 6,296 - - - - 6,296
JEWE S E R ERE Reversal of impairment of

trade receivables (2,731) - - - - (2,731)
0% - BRELEERE Impairment loss of property,

BE plant and equipment 2,326 - - - - 2326
LENE  BER Loss on disposal of property,

HEER plant and equipment 1,054 - - - - 1,054
HEREH Depreciation and amortization 33,440 - 2 2 - 33,462
ERFERDDHEE Additions to non-current segment

ZRE assets during the year 12,915 - 6 6 - 12,921
MERFEZER A Research and development costs 21,601 - - - - 21,601
FlEMA Interest income (1,232) - (35) (35) - (1,267)
RERA Finance costs 4,500 - - - - 4,500
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5. DBBIES 4
#HZE2012F 128331 BIFFEE (K&E31)

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2012 (restated]

BEEEEK BIHEEEK ok e Sk
Inter-
Continuing segment
operation Discontinued operations elimination
FAZERE
BAR KBTHES Bt NG ECh
Trading of
mobile
MLCC phones Battery Sub-total Total
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETn
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Az Segment revenue
HETHRER Sales to external customers 414,143 112,993 11,199 124,192 - 538,335
Ll Inter-segment revenue - - 6,783 6,783 6,783) S
414,143 112,993 17,982 130,975 (6,783) 538,335
AHEE Segment results 4,039 2,423 (3,563) (1,140) - 2,899
B Reconciliation:
FIBMA Interest income 1393 = = = = 1393
BEMAK Finance costs (7,644) - - - - (7,644)
HAERKEZEN Change in fair value of Net Contingent

ATERE Consideration Payable 3,510 = = = = 3510
BB AIAE Profit before taxation 1298 2423 (3,563) (1,140) - 158
AHEE Segment assets 736,667 165 55,556 55,721 = 792,388
e : Reconciliation:

7 RN Elimination of inter-segment

receivables 1)
EEAE Total assets 792177
AHEEREREE Segment liabilities and

total liabilities 297,300 1,960 47,227 49,187 - 346,487
HitpHER Other segment information:
FERZ Write-down of inventories 8,077 - 163 163 = 8,240
EWE BERTME Impairment of trade receivables 908 - - - - 908
nE - BRERRERE Impairment loss of property,

BE plant and equipment - - 1,903 1,903 _ 1,903
LENE  BER Loss on disposal of property,

SEER plant and equipment 133 - = = = 133
TEREH Depreciation and amortization 32,286 = 820 820 = 33,106
ERFERBNPEE Additions to non-current segment

ZIRE* assets during the year* 18,748 - 2,807 2,807 - 21,555
5 REERA Research and development costs 7,714 = = = = 7714
FIEBMA Interest income (1,393) - = = - (1,393)
BERA Finance costs 7,644 - = = = 7,644
* BEARYBIEYME  BERRBZAE - * capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

BREKEMNBARELEZEE °

equipment including assets from the acquisition of
subsidiaries.
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(i)

(ii)

REIMBZFZIIAN (i)
R mh S R AT RAR GRS

2 IR L E AN &R [ 2R 5 HMED

B 2 WA K13 5 47 40

™

FrAE

&

BT

LIPS
o B8 R B LA SN EL At 3 [

Mainland China

RUIPEE T

e NS
o B R B LA SN L At 1 2

Mainland China

FErRapEE (ii)

RN B & E 8 90% i AP
BARE - FtW B AERE
HIBAE 2P ERBEENRE
AEZER o

Regions other than Mainland China

Regions other than Mainland China

Revenue from external customers

The geographical analysis of the Group's revenue
from external customers by geographical location
based on where the goods are sold and delivered
and services are rendered, is as follows:

Continuing operation:

2013 & 20124
2013 2012
AR®Tx ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&%)
(restated)
412,449 282,474
100,701 131,669
513,150 414,143
Discontinued operations:
2013 & 2012 £
2013 2012
ARETFT AREEFIT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
(FeE751)
(restated)
30,451 11,199
8,161 112,993
38,612 124,192

Non-current assets

No non-current assets and capital expenditure
information is presented for the Group's
geographical location, as over 90% of the Group’s
assets are located in Mainland China.

2013FER



MEE —TFALREE2013FK
012F REFELEEBE ZWMAT
% 10% E‘ZL\/\J:EEK ©

AREERETBERIREZHBAS
1 ER Y S 6 P E ARIR o

WA(MARAEBZEXE) HO EaEmHE
ERENMERERENRE ST ER) -

R 5 R 7R Pl &

HZ= 20134 12 A 31 H IL & JZ For the year ended 31 December 2013

No single customer contributed 10% or more to the
Group’s revenue from continuing operations for 2013
and 2012.

The analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major
products and services is the same as that set out in
note 6.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns
and trade discounts.

WADHTAT - An analysis of revenue is as follows:
2013 20124
2013 2012
AR® T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(&&E5)
(restated)
FEREER Continuing operation
MLCC $H%5E Sale of MLCC 513,150 414,143
IR T Discontinued operations
B IHE Sale of battery 38,612 11,199
BE)FHE S Trading of mobile phones - 112,993
38,612 124,192

Annual Report 2013
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2013 F 20124
2013 2012
M AR¥T T ARETIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
(&£&=71))
(restated)
FEREEK Continuing operation:
Habg A Other revenue
RIEAFEFTABRZ Interest income on financial assets not
T RLE EF B at fair value through profit or loss
— BRI BUA — bank interest income 1,232 1,393
HEWA Rental income 8(c) 6,820 6,262
BT 48 B Government grants (a) 257 1,504
DR TmBAEAW A Release of government grant
as income 27 1,055 1,055
HE R Sale of materials 1,054 2,407
BeWA Commission income 337 975
TR A Sundry income 110 250
10,865 13,846
HahF s Other net income
Ry Exchange gain 2,190 -
BB B ERFORE Reversal of impairment loss for
=k m trade receivables 2,731 _
4,921 -
15,786 13,846
B RE T Discontinued operations:
Habg A Other revenue
RIEAFEFABRZ Interest income on financial assets not
T RLE EF BUA at fair value through profit or loss
— RITF WA — bank interest income 35 =
B A Sundry income 75 2
110 2
MIEE - Note:
(a) BT EL 2R T B R A EE (a) The government grants represent the subsidies received from
B SE RGNS RN the Shenzhen Financial Bureau as a reward of the excess
%E’U*Iﬁﬁ\ﬁb R amount of export sales of a high technology enterprise in the

current year over that in the previous year.
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Profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived at after
charging/(crediting) the following:

KERFEREEB ZREBANBD
B/ (GEA) TFIER :

2013 §F 20124
2013 2012
AR¥F T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(KeE5)
(restated)
BESEEL Continuing operation:
RIRAFEFABREZ Total interest expense on financial
CRIBEN SR B liabilities not at fair value
through profit or loss:
ARAFAZEEN Interest on bank loans wholly
RITERZFE repayable within five years 4,500 7,644
2013 £ 2012 4F
2013 2012
AR® T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(#2E%)
(restated)
FEREEKL Continuing operation:
RERTGRARGTE ZHR Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 3,427 3,238
e TERHEMET Salaries, wages and other benefits
(PM&ET R i) (note i and i) 56,084 56,652
59,511 59,890
IR Discontinued operations:
AERFCRIKRETEZ K Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 87 16
e ITENEMER Salaries, wages and other benefits
(B=Ei X ii) (note i and ii) 2,312 393
2,399 409

Annual Report 2013
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BELSEEK
FERA (FFED)

e (ki &ii)

=t 7R & T8 5 SR 8

H i B\ B B

Bige R A

AEERF (M)

BFRefnRERE
A

ZEE B &

PR ERCFRR)

B EYE - BE &
R ENRE

FEWE 585 OBlE
B m),RiE (ML)

HEWE - BE R
HEEE

ME - BE M&E
VERIEN R

REMERS WA
BE B ERY
AR 473,000 7T
(20124 : AR#E
348,000 7T)

RIER K

TFERA (FIED)

e (HeEi &ii)

ME - BE R&E
VERIEY R

BFELeHNRHEE
FRIE

PE =R CFRR)

Continuing operation:

Cost of inventories (note i)

Depreciation (note i and ii)

Amortisation of prepaid land lease
prepayments

Amortisation of other intangible
assets

Research and development costs:

Current year expenditure (note ii)

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases in respect of
buildings

Auditors’ remuneration

Foreign exchange differences, net

Forfeiture of deposit paid for
acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

(Reversal of impairment)/
impairment of trade receivables
(note iii)

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment

Rental income on investment
properties less direct
outgoings of RMB473,000
(2012: RMB348,000)

Discontinued operations:

Cost of inventories (note i)

Depreciation (note i and ii)

Impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases in respect of
buildings

Foreign exchange differences, net

2013 £
2013
ARETT
RMB’000

B aE

Notes

21(a) 435,399

32,763
488
189

21,601
687

1,436
(2,190)

(2,731)
1,054

2,326

7 (6,347)

21(a) 37,035

22

160
71

20124
2012
AREFIT
RMB'000
(2&E7)

(restated)

361,679
31,626

488
172
7,714
263

2,683
45

1,100

908

133

(5,914)

120,559
820

1,903

45
102
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Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

For continuing operation, cost of inventories includes
RMB70,342,000 (2012: RMB63,973,000 (restated))
relating to staff costs and depreciation, which are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above.

For discontinued operations, cost of inventories includes
RMB819,000 (2012: RMB409,000 (restated)) relating to
staff costs and depreciation, which are also included in
the respective total amounts disclosed separately above.

Included in research and development costs are
depreciation of RMB137,000 (2012: RMB137,000) and
staff costs of RMB3,938,000 (2012: RMB3,758,000),
which are also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above.

The reversals of impairment and impairment of trade
receivables are included in “Other revenue and other net
income” and “Other expenses” respectively on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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9. RECEREREMEBEBINZRA 9. INCOME TAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

SiE=35 OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
a] HABEXIRHEMEZEKRERAMEH (2] Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or
= loss and other comprehensive income represents:

20135 2012 4F
2013 2012
AR®Tx ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(geE5)
(restated)
BESEEK Continuing operation:
BEARR I8 Current tax
— REFHRHPEMER — PRC Enterprise Income Tax
for the year 10,430 7,072
— EAFEBEEE — Overprovision in prior years (1,439) (858)
EAEFIR Deferred taxation
— ERMEENES KED — Origination and reversal of
temporary differences (859) 216
KREZFER Income tax for the year 8,132 6,430
R Discontinued operations:
BNEAT 18 Current tax
— AFEHPRAPEMEHR — PRC Enterprise Income Tax
for the year 1 889
— BEFEBRETE — Underprovision in prior years - 998
KEEFAER Income tax for the year 1 1,887
FRIER (EB)BRAT
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

AEBARAEBKBEARE
PRERREZREARBEE L
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B S REE R B - Bkt
AEBEYERBANEHREL
B -

RERSHENREBRELHES
ZRANRMRTE  AEEEAD
MRHESHEREBRELRHS
HMIERIFTIEH ©

R AN A B R AR B K RE 2 B B
ARFYIMFESEREERER
A R(TEINFE]) KR20105F
10A31HBXRERSHEH
PERE S WHER20MEE
2013 FHIE BB 2 TS
FRIEEE15% °

B EXFIURIIFRBEATES
15% BRI TSI - KRB
BKRE 2 B R RRENAR
25% IR AR KRN ZEFTISHL ©
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(continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity
basis on profits arising in or derived from the
jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operate.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been
made as the Group had no assessable profits
derived from or earned in Hong Kong during the
year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman lIslands and the BVI, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and the BVI respectively.

On 31 October 2010, Shenzhen Eyang Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“SZ Eyang”) C&EIITTFS
B R AER A F]), a subsidiary of the Company
in Mainland China, was recognised as a high
technology enterprise again and was subject to
enterprise income tax rate of 15% from 2011 to
2013.

Except for SZ Eyang mentioned above that was
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15%, the
subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China
were required to pay enterprise income tax (“EIT")
at the standard rate of 25% during the year.
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&R

FREEEXRY
B 25 B

BEEMERFTEZBIA
UTNEBZBRBATE

BEHERER 2 BIERE

TR B B 1t

BB RFLUTA

R HF A

KRERZFHIEEE

EAYNIR 50% T 98 &
FEE R

BEFEBRRE

BAER 2 B AR
B8 X B AT DR AR
BHRTE

HAit

BERBIRFX

RIEEERE
B A5t Al 5 18

BOREMERFTE ZHA
UTNEBZMBRE
ARIHOBL X
BEFERE TR
Hit

BERTIAMX

The Group

Continuing operation:
Profit before taxation

Tax at the statutory tax rate
Tax effect of:

Lower tax rates for specific districts

or countries
Tax incentives
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Tax losses not recognised
Additional deduction of 50% of
the research and development
expenses
Overprovision in prior years
Effect of withholding tax on
the distributable profits of
the Group’s Mainland China
subsidiaries
Others

Actual tax expense

Discontinued operations:
Loss before taxation

Tax at the statutory tax rate
Tax effect of:

Expenses not deductible for tax
Underprovision in prior years
Others

Actual tax expense

2013 &
2013
ARETR
RMB’000

9,041

2,260

673
(1,920)
(2,088)

8,995

215

(1,524)
(1,439)

20
2,940

8,132

(6,281)

(1,570)

1,167

404

20124
2012
AREFIT
RMB’'000
(Fe&E5)

(restated)

1,298

324

1,281
(2,219)
(962)
5,158
1,696

(816)
(858)

405
2,421

6,430

(1,140)

(285)
1,914

998
(740)

1,887
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On 27 December 2013, the Group disposed of its entire
equity interest in a wholly owned subsidiary, Shenzhen Eyang
Energy Company Limited and its subsidiary (the “Energy
Group”), engaging in the manufacture and sale of batteries,
which was acquired on 12 November 2012 (see note 33). The
disposal was completed on 27 December 2013. The details
of the assets and liabilities disposed of, and the calculation of
the deemed distribution to shareholders arising from disposal,
are disclosed in note 34. As a result of the disposal of Energy
Group, the Group’s business operation in the manufacture
and sale of batteries were discontinued.

On 28 June 2013, the Group passed a written resolution for
voluntary winding-up of an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
HK Weichang, which engaged in the trading of mobile phones
and liquidators were appointed. Upon the appointment of
liquidators, the directors of the Company considered that the
Group ceased to control HK Weichang. The results, assets
and liabilities and cash flows of HK Weichang were
deconsolidated from the consolidated financial statements
from 28 June 2013 and the details are set out in note 35. As
a result of the voluntary winding-up of HK Weichang, the
Group's business operation in the trading of mobile phones
was discontinued.

Accordingly, the financial results of the Energy Group and HK
Weichang were classified and presented as discontinued
operations in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-Current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued operations”. The comparative
figures for the year ended 31 December 2012 have been
reclassified to conform with current year presentation.
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@ HREZE2013F %2012 12 43181k (@)  The results of the discontinued operations for the years
FE - RIHEE B 2 FEHNNWT ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are set out below:
20135 20126
2013 2012
BBHFH BT
it g% b Bt g5 &t
Trading of Trading of
mobile mobile
Battery phones Total Battery phones Total

W ARMTR AR%TR ARMTR ARETT ARBTR ARETR
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

WA Revenue 6 38,612 - 38,612 11,199 112,993 124,192
HERR Cost of sales (37,035) - (37,035) (11,266) (109,130) (120,396)
EH/(£18) Gross profit/(loss) 1577 - 1577 (67) 3,863 3,796
L8 ON Other revenue 7 110 - 110 2 - 2
HERD KK Selling and distribution costs (1,667) - (1,667) (488) (1,214) (1,702)
TEREMER Administrative and other expenses (6,301) - (6,301) (3,010) (226) (3,236)
BHA (B18),/ 57 (Loss)/profit before taxation 8 (6,281) - (6,281) (3,563) 2,423 (1,140)
FiEH Income tax 9 (1) - (1) (1,283) (604) (1,887)
(6,282) - (6,282) (4,846) 1,819 (3,027)
KE-FHBAR Gain on loss of control of
EHlEmE kS a subsidiary 35 - - - _ . _
NG PN (Loss)fprofit for the year from
RIEEEER discontinued operations
FE(BR)/HH attributable to owners of
the Company (6,282) - (6,282) (4,846) 1,819 (3,027)
(b) MEZE2013F K%2012F12 A31H1E (b)  The net cash flows of the discontinued operations for
FE RIEKEEF RS REFE the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are set
T - out below:
20135 20128
2013 2012
BEFHR BEFH
it g5 @it Bt 2% e
Trading of Trading of
mobile mobile
Battery phones Total Battery phones Total

ARBTR  ARETR AR®TR ARBTT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RVBO00  RMB000  RMB'000

"ETHHEN/ Net cash inflowsf(outflows) from

(RE)MBELEE operating activities 6,247 - 6,247 (247) (2,431) (2,678)
REZHRLN Net cash outflows from investing

ReFHE activities (45) - (45) (23) - (23)
RIEEEEERA/ Net cash inflows/loutflows) of

(R R FE discontinued operations 6,202 - 6,202 (270) (2.431) (2,701)
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BIBBBCAREOIDE 161G ZHTE - E Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of
ERSHENT ¢ the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:
BIRER
e FeREl f#3 ame
Salaries Retirement
and benefit Total

Fees allowances  contributions  remuneration

AR®TR  ARETR  AREBTR  AR%TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BOES: Executive directors:
BREREE(REE]) Mr. Chen Weirong (“Mr. Chen”)
(ZEHZITHAER) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) - 423 18 441
U (TR E)) Mr. Jing Wenping (“Mr. Jing")
(R2013%5 A7 REZ) (appointed on 7 May 2013) - 178 13 191
TEEE(TEE]D Mr. Wang Ye (“Mr. Wang ")
(W201349A18AEZM)  (appointed on 18 September 2013) - 155 13 168
BREE(BEE]) Mr. Liao Jie (“Mr. Liao")
(R201349 A 18 BEHE) (resigned on 18 September 2013) - 188 1 199
REEE(REE)) Mr. Xu Chuncheng (“Mr. Xu")
(R2013E9 A 18 RIRF) (retired on 18 September 2013) - 106 9 115
FRTES Non-executive directors:
BRELE Mr. Cheng Wusheng - - - -
REMLE Mr. Zhang Zhilin - - - -
e Mr. Chen Hao - - - -
Bt ((FExt)) Ms. Shuang Mei (“Ms. Shuang")
(R2013%1 A 25 BEHE) (resigned on 25 January 2013) - - - -
BUFHIES: Independent non-executive directors:
il e Mr. Liu Huanbin 68 - - 68
EEEE Mr. Pan Wei 68 - - 68
RRERE Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus 98 - - 98
RREE Mr. Liang Rong
(R2013F5 7 REZRM) (appointed on 7 May 2013) 44 - - 4
BRESHE Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick
(20139 A 18 HEZAE) (appointed on 18 September 2013) 26 - - 26

304 1,050 64 1418

Annual Report 2013
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RINER

ik o RoEE: 3 ae
Salaries Retirement

and benefit Total

Fees allowances  contributions  remuneration

AREFL  ARBTR  ARBTL  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BIES: Executive directors:
BEREE Mr. Chen Weirong
(LEZTHEH) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) - 713 2% 737
Blss Mr. Liao Jie
(R2013F9 A 18 HEHE) (resigned on 18 September 2013) = 845 2 866
RIEHTE Mr. Xu Chuncheng
(R2013%9 A 18 HE() (retired on 18 September 2013) = 459 17 476
FHITEES Non-executive directors:
BRERE Mr. Cheng Wusheng = - - _
REMEE Mr. Zhang Zhilin - - - -
Bis%E Mr. Chen Hao - - - _
RiELL Ms. Shuang Mei
(R2013%1 A 25 BEfT) (resigned on 25 January 2013) = = - -
BUFHTES Independent non-executive directors:
FIgi £ Mr. Liu Huanbin 68 - - 68
BELE Mr. Pan Wei 68 - - 68
KBRER%E Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus 98 = S 98
234 2,017 62 2,313

REAEETRARB ZITTHRAR  EXAEK
BEREE e BREMEETRAEM
R ZME -

FR - ANEBWESMEFHH T AL REMR
EEEAMALREEZ 88 IEABER
BE {8 - MBI Z2013F & 2012412 A31H
ItFE TEEERACHURERRIM
B -

BEFEY ATESARSALAEER
% ERIR AR R 2 BT S TR
- BRE—THBE RN B REM T
30 ZEBEREZ ATEEERBEIFE
EHEBHAEMNBEEAER) EXEL BHE
JE o B E2013F & 2012F 12 A31 B IEF
B WEERARELSEBRERSY -

Mr. Chen is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and his remuneration disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive Officer.

During the year, no remuneration were paid by the Group to
any of the directors of the Company as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the directors has waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012.

Certain directors were granted share options in prior years in
respect of their services to the Group under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in note 30 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options which was recognised in the profit or loss over the
vesting period in prior years was determined as at the date of
grant. During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012,
no equity-settled share option expenses were recognised.
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The five highest paid employees during the year included one
(2012: two) director, details of whose emoluments are set
out in note 11 above. Details of the emoluments of the
remaining four (2012: three) non-director and non-chief
executive and highest paid employees for the year are as
follows:

2013 % 20124

2013 2012

AR¥T T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

e MoERL Salaries and allowances 2,111 2,215
RARREFH I Retirement benefit contributions 31 12
2,142 2,227

FINEATHEZIFES - FTHAED
ERFEEREHELT

F 71,000,000 T
(2013%F : 22 AR¥ 798,000 7T :
2012%F : T AR 813,0007T)
1,000,001 78 7L £ 1,500,000 7T
(20134 : AR¥798,001 TLE
AR®1,197,0007T :
2012 : AREB13,001 TR
AR#%1,220,0007T)

HZE2013F 12 A31 B ILFEZ A QR #
EAELSEEBERBEEBEEARE
7,688,000t (20124 = A & # 5,039,000
TL)  HEBRERAR R KRR EE (M
FE32(b)) ©

Annual Report 2013

Nil to HK$1,000,000

(2013: Nil to RMB798,000,

2012: Nil to RMB813,000) 3 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

(2013: RMB798,001 to RMB1,197,000,

2012: RMB813,001 to RMB1,220,000)

The number of non-director and non-chief executive and
highest paid employees whose emoluments fell within the
following band is as follows:

2013 % 20126
2013 2012

A¥ AH
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2013 includes a loss of
RMB7,688,000 (2012: RMB5,039,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company (note 32(b)).
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HZE2013F L2012 12 A31HIEFE -
YESMRERTABRE  RREHRE
IMEEHTARE -

AREEBARESRERRTN,(FBE)
THRA T BUEFE -

ARABEAANBEARSE 2 FE,/(B18)

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

The Group’s profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the
Company:

2013 & 20124

2013 2012

ARET T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

(&%)

(restated)

REFEESERS From continuing operation 909 (5,132)

KK EERE From discontinued operations (6,282) (3,027)

1Bzt Total (5,373) (8,159)
R ER - Number of shares:

IR D E R Weighted average number of shares 405,500,000 405,500,000

#H =20134F & 2012912 A318 1t
FE - ARARRIBITEINEREZ
THEERRARRRONREBFEEZ
FHHE - REREERF,(EE)
HEREARF(BE)HESE -

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012 were the same as the basic
earnings/(loss) per share because the exercise prices of
the Company’s outstanding share options were higher
than the average market prices of the Company’s
shares during the years.
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BER MERER
BF B Rtk AE HEIR @t
Office and
Plant and other Motor Construction
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
ARETRT ARETR AR%®TR AR%TR ARETn AR®ETR
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
72012412 A318% At 31 December 2012 and
2013F1R18 at 1 January 2013:
A Cost 80,855 357,189 16,224 2,573 1,272 458,113
ZEERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (10,357)  (160,086) (8,539) (1,716) - (180,698)
BREE Carrying amount 70,498 197,103 7,685 857 1,272 277,415
R2013E1 /18 - At 1 January 2013, net of
Mk 2T ERRE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 70,498 197,103 7,685 857 1,272 277,415
NE Additions 97 12,021 247 156 66 12,587
& Disposals (955) - (562) (149) (25) (1,691)
HENERR Disposal of subsidiaries - (251) (110) (1) - (362)
ERELEYE Transfer to investment
(H&£17) properties (note 17) (44) - - - - (44)
EREYFEER Transfer from investment
(H&E17) properties (note 17) 7,738 - - - - 7,738
FRITERE Depreciation provided during the year (1,801) (28,808) (1,323) (218) - (32,150)
FRRE Impairment during the year - (290) (2,036) - - (2,326)
R2013%€12 4318 © At 31 December 2013, net of
Nk 2 ERRE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 75,533 179,775 3,901 645 1,313 261,167
R2013%F 12318 At 31 December 2013:
A Cost 87,685 363,895 11,669 2,271 1,313 466,833
ZFMERRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (12,152) (184,120) (7,768) (1,626) - (205,666)
RAE Carrying amount 75,533 179,775 3,901 645 1,313 261,167

Annual Report 2013
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16. % - MERRE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

REE The Group (continued)
BF BHR HiRE AE rETR @t
Office and
Plant and other Motor Construction
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET:H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2011%128318%  At31 December 2011 and
20121 A18 at 1 January 2012:
KA Cost 59,138 344,290 15,004 2,460 24,205 445,097
BFMERRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (9,466) (130,227) (9,813) (1,408) = (150,914)
BEEE Carrying amount 49,672 214,063 5,191 1,052 24,205 294,183
R2012€1 818 - At 1 January 2012, net of
Nk 2 MERRE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 49,672 214,063 5,191 1,052 24,205 294,183
NE Additions 701 11,638 1,851 - 4,566 18,756
BREBRAHZWE Acquisitions through business
combinations - 1,829 857 113 - 2,799
e Disposals - (3,080) (538) - 8 (3,626)
EE Transfers 22,706 2,711 2,074 - (27,491) =
BRTREYE Transfer to investment
(H=£17) properties (note 17) (5,807) - - - = (5,807)
BREMEER Transfer from investment
(HizE17) properties (note 17) 4,739 = = = = 4,739
FRNITERE Depreciation provided during the year (1,513) (28,834) (1,149) (230) - (31,726)
FARE Impairment during the year - (1,224) (601) (78) = (1,903)
R2012412 8318 ©  At31 December 2012, net of
MeR BT ERRE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 70,498 197,103 7,685 857 1,272 277,415
R2012%€12 8318 At31 December 2012:
KR Cost 80,855 357,189 16,224 2,573 1,272 458,113
ZFAMERRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (10,357) (160,086) (8,539) (1,716) = (180,698)
REE Carrying amount 70,498 197,103 7,685 857 1,272 277,415
FRIER (EB)BRAT 2013 FFHR
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

/=) The Company
MEER
Hip%
Office
and other
equipment
ARETT
RMB'000
201212 A31 AR2013% 1 A1H :  At31 December 2012 and
1 January 2013:
B AR Cost 40
RETIE Accumulated depreciation (37)
RHEE Carrying amount 3
R2013F1 818 KR EFITE At 1 January 2013, net of accumulated depreciation 3
NE Additions 6
FRTERE Depreciation provided during the year 2)
R2013F 12 A31 B MR RFHE At 31 December 2013, net of accumulated depreciation 7
R2013F12A31A : At 31 December 2013:
B Cost 46
2FHME Accumulated depreciation (39)
REE Carrying amount 7
B2011E12 A31H&2012%F1A1H At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012:
B AR Cost 40
RETIE Accumulated depreciation (29)
RHEE Carrying amount 11
R2012F1 18 HKREFTE At 1 January 2012, net of accumulated depreciation 11
FRITERE Depreciation provided during the year 8
R2012F12A318 - MBRHTE At 31 December 2012, net of accumulated depreciation 3
R2012% 128318 : At 31 December 2012:
BXAR Cost 40
e Accumulated depreciation (37)
REE Carrying amount 3

Annual Report 2013
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(b)

AEE 2 BFRP B AR S HEL
BA e

AEBERET - BE RESEAER
AEEZRITERZFHIEH R
28

FERA P B M R B AN E AR
SN R2013F 12 A31 BE®R
SFEE S B4 B AR 4,339,000 7T &
AREZIT(2012F : DRIAARE
4,554,000 7T & A R ¥ 8,431,000 7T )
ZETEF AR -

REZE2012F12A31HIEFEE ' #
REGEREENE - AR AEBEZ
BUIE R AR 2 TT YR Bl & REHE AT
e - ZEBEARAEBEZEN S
=0 o 5 R A R 1,903,000 T 2
WEEE  ERGAERLkEMEE
Wsrsc r AT AHER - HEAEE
2 EE L RERT ISR AT
BERLEKAEE -

REZE2013F12A31HLFE - &
EEHE RS2 rl e RE e T
& - EEREME Rt 2 B
REMEERLERNFE  RAE
BEMEEZEEBAREHARE
2,326,000 7T © JB (B E5 1839 B 5 A LR
GEmEEMEEMBERPITERER
BT o

The Group’s buildings are held under medium term
leases in Mainland China.

Details of the Group's building and plant and machinery
pledged to secure the Group’s bank loans are set out in
note 28.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings
of the Group located in Dongguan and Anhui with a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB4,339,000 and
RMB nil as at 31 December 2013 respectively (2012:
RMB4,554,000 and RMB8,431,000 respectively) have
not yet been issued by the relevant PRC authorities.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, as the result
of the poor performance of a manufacturing plant, the
Group carried out a review of the recoverable amount
of that manufacturing plant and the related equipment.
These assets are used in the Group's battery segment.
The review led to the recognition of an impairment loss
of RMB1,903,000, which has been recognised in other
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. The recoverable
amount of the relevant assets has been determined on
the basis of fair value less costs of disposal with
reference to active market.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the directors
assessed the recoverable amounts of plant and
machinery and concluded that the carrying amounts of
plant and machinery were impaired by approximately
RMB2,326,000 based on their physical conditions and
their estimated net selling prices less costs of disposal.
The impairment losses were recorded in administrative
expense in consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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17. BEY=E 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
ARET T
RMB'000
M2012%F12 A31B&2013%1A1H At 31 December 2012 and at 1 January 2013:
D% Cost 28,324
ZHITE Accumulated depreciation (1,699)
RmEE Carrying amount 26,625
W2013E1 A1 RZAMA - IR B5H37E  Costat 1 January 2013, net of accumulated depreciation 26,625
BYE  BERREEE Transfer from property, plant and equipment 44
EREERAYE Transfer to owner-occupied property (7,738)
FRTERE Depreciation provided during the year (635)
20134612 A31H At 31 December 2013 18,296
R2013F12A318 : At 31 December 2013:
AR Cost 19,455
BEHITE Accumulated depreciation (1,159)
BRHEE Carrying amount 18,296
R2011 12 A31H&20124F1A1H At 31 December 2011 and at 1 January 2012:
BN Cost 27,714
RETIE Accumulated depreciation (1,437)
FHE Carrying amount 26,277
R2012F1 A1 BZHA - B 25  Costat 1 January 2012, net of accumulated depreciation 26,277
BME - BERREER Transfer from property, plant and equipment 5,807
EREARYE Transfer to owner-occupied property (4,739)
ERFERE Depreciation provided during the year (720)
R2012% 12 A31H At 31 December 2012 26,625
R2012% 128318 : At 31 December 2012:
AR Cost 28,324
BEITE Accumulated depreciation (1,699)
IREE Carrying amount 26,625
Annual Report 2013 EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited
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(@ ARBZREVERETFHBOFE (a)
WAL A BRFE o

(b) INPIFE28FTEL - BETREMECD K (b)
ERARRASE ZRITER -

() H2013F12A31H &2012F12 8 (c)

NA - AEEREMECZATFES
R4 B A R # 74,017,000 7T (£ 378
ETENMFIE - AR 42,019,000 7T :
MEF : AR#31,998,0007T) & A
R¥76,461,000 T (L EFE 5K
I8 : AR#42,177,000 TRETF : A
R#34,284,0007T) * JIRIEBILH
¥ 5 BRI EMSETEBRARME
LRI EME -

20134 N 201212 A31H " H
SNEHEREE ZREMELTFEN

BT
EHE Description
KEYE Investment properties

The Group's investment properties are held under
medium term leases and are situated in Mainland China.

Certain investment properties were pledged to secure
the Group's bank loans as set out in note 28.

At 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties was
approximately RMB74,017,000 (prepaid land lease
payment: RMB42,019,000; and buildings:
RMB31,998,000) and RMB76,461,000 (prepaid land
lease payment: RMB42,177,000 and buildings:
RMB34,284,000) respectively, based on the valuations
performed by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuer.

The details of fair value of the investment properties as
at 31 December 2013 and 2012 determined by an
external valuer is as below:

"2013F12A31H
RANATETEFRN
Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2013 using

HREERE HEEMN TAIEERN
SRR IZNRE AHREHE BEEHE
(ZB14) (%E24) (%34)
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
ARET T ARETR AR®T R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
- - 74,017
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(0 (%) (c) (continued)

201212 A31H
RANATEETR
Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2012 using

HREERE HitbEER TRIBRD

ER ISR RE EIp:ak=3 e BE2HE
(F14) (F24%) (FE3/%)
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
I H Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
AREFT ARETT ARETTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BB Investment properties - - 76,461
EEDRKFZERNE(FERER The valuation was based on income capitalisation
SE) - 20134 % 2012412 B approach (term and reversionary method) which use
31 B2 RAl s eis (£ 3 @) HiTst unobservable inputs (Level 3) at 31 December 2013 and
. 2012.
TEEE AFARIERE « EBOR K The key inputs are term yield, reversionary yield and
KM EMES - market unit rent.
rEH
The Group
2013 2012 5
2013 2012
AR® T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
®N1A1HZEREE Carrying amount at 1 January 20,829 21,317
FREHERE Amortisation provided during the year (488) (488)
M12 A31 BZEREE Carrying amount at 31 December 20,341 20,829
BIEETANZIE R4S REM  Current portion included in prepayments,

FE W RIE 2 BNERES 5 deposits and other receivables (488) (488)
JERNERER 5> Non-current portion 19,853 20,341
(a) AEBECHASTHIBRETEALNEE (a)  The Group's leasehold lands are held under medium

37 7 R B KB o term leases and are situated in Mainland China.
(o) fAMIGE28FTE - BT T ETELN (b)  Certain prepaid land lease payments were pledged to
FIEE I ERITERIER - bank loans as set out in note 28.
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rEH
The Group
20135 2012 4F
2013 2012
AR® TR ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
A Cost
®1A1H At 1 January 1,713 1,713
NE Addition 334 _
MW12A31H 31 December 2,047 1,713
e Accumulated amortisation
R1A1H At 1 January 688 516
FRNEEERE Amortisation provided during the year 189 172
M12A318 At 31 December 877 688
REE Carrying amount
MW12HA31H At 31 December 1,170 1,025
HimEEAERANERIES 2 EISEUE - Other intangible assets represent computer software held by
AREEHETHEAGAERLEMER the Group. The amortisation charged for the year is included
WHKRZITHREARANA - in administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
/N
The Company
2013 2012 4F
2013 2012
ARETR ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
JE ETAReD - HRAKANE Unlisted shares, at cost 365,001 365,001
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R2013F12 8318 - IMBARZH

BEHNOT -

1

Name

Eyang Management
Co., Ltd.

("Eyang Management")

ERFHER (RE) AR
Hong Kong Eyang Holdings

(Group) Co., Ltd.

BATHMRARAH

Hong Kong Eyang

Technology Co., Ltd.

AFH *
SZ Eyang*

Annual Report 2013

B3 A
B
Place of
incorporation/
business

RERARE/
B
BVI/HK

&R/ E
HK/PRC

BA/HE
HK/PRC

E/ R
PRC/PRC
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Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013

are as follows:

BRTRAR/
R A

Issued and

fully paid-up/
registered capital

10,000 kB 1 %2
A% /50,000 5%
BR1ETZEE

10,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each/
50,000 authorised
ordinary shares
of US$1 each

10,000 RER1BTZ
EiBA,10,000 %
SR BT LR
Bl

10,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each/
10,000 authorised
ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

500,000 R Ei& 178 7T2
A% /500,000 8%
SR 1BLLEE
Lk

500,000 ordinary
shares of
HK$1 each/

500,000 authorised
ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

BRBRAARE
350,000,000 7T

Paid-up capital of
RMB350,000,000

%

100

NG )3
[ ENEpil
Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
B

Direct

i
Indirect
%

100

100

100

TEEHR

Principal activities

REZR

Investment holding

REERK
BEEMLCC

Investment holding
and trading of
MLCC

BEEMLCC
Trading of MLCC

SERHEMLCC
Manufacture and
sale of MLCC
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Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013
are as follows: (continued)

72013412 A31 8 - HEBAR Z#
BEIWT : (&)

EMRL BERTRAZ/ NG )3
B MR REAFDH
Place of Issued and Percentage of
£ incorporation/  fully paid-up/ equity attributable TEXK
Name business registered capital to the Company Principal activities
B EiEE
Direct Indirect
% %
REMFHHMREREBAR HE/ FEH HBRBRARE - 100 #EHER
(TREFH1)* PRC/PRC 20,000,0007T EEMLCC
Dongguan Eyang Paid-up capital of Lease of properties
Technology Development RMB20,000,000 and trading of
Co., Ltd. (“DG Eyang")* MLCC
ZHEFHE TR hEl,/HhE BRBRARE - 100 B4EREEMLCC
BRAR PRC/PRC 5,000,000 7C Manufacture and
Anhui Jineyang Electronic Paid-up capital of sale of MLCC
Technology Co., Ltd.* RMB5,000,000
NER Management Ltd. EBRZ#EE/ 1BRER1ETZ 100 - REER
B5 8% /50,000 i Investment holding
BVIHK BRI1ETLZEE
EER
1 ordinary share of
US$1 each/
50,000 authorised

ordinary shares
of US$1 each

2013FER



R2013F12 8318 - IMBARZH

BEINOT : (F)

1

Name

Eyang Energy
Management Co.,
Limited

BAETHRRERAF

Hong Kong Eyang Energy

Co., Limited

AP EAEERERAR *

Shenzhen Weichang

New Energy Co., Ltd.*

ZE
i

B3 A
B
Place of
incorporation/
business

RERRARE/
BA
BVI/HK

BB/ E
HK/PRC

E/PE
PRC/PRC

RABKY 2 RERINEBE

# AZERFEKRLZ AR RTEAL

RERT -

FEUFEST T A BRI R ISR
EERNEREEE - SR TE
B RARRIBZREEEEAFE

EESR
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Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013
are as follows: (continued)

BRTRAR/
R A

Issued and

fully paid-up/
registered capital

100 R BAR1 ET2
A% /50,0005
BRI1ETZEE

100 ordinary shares of
US$1 each/

50,000 authorised
ordinary shares
of US$1 each

10,000 Bk 1ETZ
EiBAR,10,000 %
SN Pa
B

10,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each/
10,000 authorised
ordinary shares
of US$1 each

@R IR 723,000,000 7T

Paid-up capital of
HK$3,000,000

NG )3
[ ENEpil
Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
B Gk
Direct Indirect
% %

100 =

= 100

= 100

TEEHR

Principal activities

REZR

Investment holding

BRI

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

* These companies were established in the PRC in the
form of wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.

# These companies were established in the PRC as PRC
domestic-invested companies.

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The carrying
amounts of these amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries
approximate their fair values.
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rER
The Group
2013 & 20124
2013 2012
ARETT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR Raw materials 12,028 14,858
&G Work in progress 16,349 21,537
IR oh Finished goods 65,598 84,740
93,975 121,135
T BB Provision against slow-moving inventories (17,068) (10,772)
76,907 110,363
(a) MRABRXWINAEBRZZIEZESES (@) The analysis of the amounts of inventories recognised
iR N as an expense and included in profit or loss is as
follows:
2013 F 20124
2013 2012
ARET T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEREEKL ! Continuing operation:
CHEFEE ZEREAEE Carrying amount of inventories sold 429,103 353,602
FERE Write-down of inventories* 6,296 8,077
435,399 361,679
RIEREEK . Discontinued operations:
EHEFEZREE Carrying amount of inventories sold 37,035 120,396
GFERE! Write-down of inventories? - 163
37,035 120,559
& GFERGEBRBEGEBE REM & The write-down of inventories are included in “Other
2ENER [HEMHALZ BT - expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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2013 5 20124F
2013 2012
AR® T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
JBULE IR Trade receivables 155,516 185,396
eSS Bills receivables 77,523 45,118
233,039 230,514
W RE Less: Impairment (5,910) (8,641)
227,129 221,873
(a) AEEHRETFZEZHAURES (a) The Group's trading terms with its customers are
F-EEH—MAE2EEA - R mainly on credit. The credit periods are generally two to
FREZ=EER ASEEKREER five months. Each customer has a maximum credit
FEWGRIE A BRI S - WA {5 B limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
BERUBECEERKRBERE - B2 outstanding receivables and has a credit control policy
Bne BT @ E R ERUE - B to minimize its credit risk. Overdue balances are
BIERBRE ° reviewed regularly by management. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.
(b) FTERWKEELHIREPRLE60 (b)  The bills receivables were all due within 60 to 180 days
£180 HAEIA] - from the end of the reporting period.
(©) RPEHR - REZAHAEEE (c)  An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end

WE SRR REAITIAT

of the reporting period based on the invoice date is as
follows:

2013 £ 2012 4F

2013 2012

AR® T AR®ET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

90 HA Within 90 days 134,608 132,996
91£180H 91 to 180 days 13,866 42,171
1812360 H 181 to 360 days 1,844 1,762
1224 1to 2 years 1,373 1,239
2F34F 2 to 3 years 423 -
A3 F Over 3 years 3,402 7,228
155,516 185,396
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(d RIFEHR REBRRLBEHRAREE (d)  An aged analysis of the bills receivables as at the end of
ZEWERIE 7RSI the reporting period based on bills issued date is as
follows:
2013 F 2012 4F
2013 2012
AR®Tx ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
0HA Within 90 days 43,557 30,354
91 £ 180 H 91 to 180 days 33,281 14,764
181 £ 360 H 181 to 360 days 685 -
77,523 45,118
(e) MEWESRIVAEREZSNOT : (e)  The movements in the provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

rEHE
The Group

2013 2012 %

2013 2012

AR®Tx ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

Mm1A1H At 1 January 8,641 7,733
BRI EER Impairment losses recognised 1,271 1,273
(B 5 (o] Reversal of impairment (4,002) (365)

M®12A31H At 31 December 5,910 8,641
AN LEERE S RFRERER Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
& 5l 2 % EEWE SR KEE receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
AR®5,910,0007C(2012F : AR receivables of RMB5,910,000 (2012: RMB8,641,000)
#8,641,00070) - HEEEEAAR with a carrying amount of RMB5,910,000 (2012:
#5,910,0007C(2012F : A R #& RMB8,641,000). The individually impaired trade
8,641,0007T) & Al 2 & 15 FE i & receivables relate to customers that were in financial
SEREHBVBEREZERPAE difficulties and are doubtful. The Group does not hold
M WEAENEE ASEIWE any collateral or other credit enhancements over these

I 55 4 R 35 A T (e 1 R sl E b n balances.
BIZEERENE

2013FER
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WIEE R EARE RBREEKRE Z (f)  An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that

RN ERRIE 2 R DTN T

are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

rEER
The Group

2013 2012 %

2013 2012

AR® T ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

i o 0 B U 4 ER SE(E Neither past due nor impaired 123,191 159,170

@ HEI R 90 A Less than 90 days past due 24,963 15,140

#®HI91 £ 180 H 91 to 180 days past due 895 175

#H1181 £ 360 H 181 to 360 days past due 365 2,186

WE1 =24 1 to 2 years past due 1 84

B AR R 2 Over 2 years past due 191 =

149,606 176,755

rEH
The Group

2013 5 2012 4

2013 2012

AR®TR AREETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

1 < 380 2R 78 4 (IR R (E Neither past due nor impaired 77,523 45,118
MRS E NI R E ENIEE B Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
HETRAEREAR  HEEHLE relate to a number of diversified customers for whom

BT RALEE ©

there was no recent history of default.

B EEE IR R E Y FEE SR (90 The trade receivables that were past due but not
EELBEUREAYE  HENAEE impaired relate to a number of independent customers
T ERERAR BT o IR TR LA RES - AN that have a good track record with the Group. Based on
NEEEREAEECESTEWEST AN past experience, the directors of the Company are of
B B E AT 2 kE the opinion that no provision for impairment is
E P /B ot 25 S A Ve R E B o necessary in respect of these balances as there has not

Annual Report 2013

been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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23. EAURIE - REREMBUGRIE  23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

bS] N
The Group The Company
2013 2012 F 20136 2012
2013 2012 2013 2012

ARBTR ARBTT AR®TR ARETL
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000

JE R & Commission receivable - 972 - _
HERBARZ Consideration receivable in respect of
FEURRAE disposal of subsidiaries 1,200 - - _
WEEERKFTA Indemnification asset receivable - 8,292 - _
BN e R Loans and receivables 1,200 9,264 - _
MY EERZBNZE Prepayments to suppliers 711 3,626 - _
b Deposits 2,913 710 - _
SRR Prepaid expenses 1,407 3,244 - 65
T ETENFIE Prepaid land lease payment 488 488 - _
H i IR Other tax receivables 6,490 15,134 - _
13,209 32,466 - 65
B Impairment (386) (386) - -
12,823 32,080 - 65

i

SR (58 BIRA 2013 FFHR

>
O

5B

§

121




Be MRITEH
EHER

B ERENEERERRE
Z BEHEIRITIFR

EREITERZEEMRT

75k (B £ 28(a))

1 - BRI
DR3ME B2 RITEE -

ERENRERERE

BRI|ITER

HERERERAZEHER
ReFEY

Ba RIRITHER
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Cash and bank balances
Time deposit

Less: Pledged bank deposits for bills
payable and letters of credit
Pledged bank deposits for bank
loans (note 28(a))

Add: Bank deposits with original maturity
of less than three months when
acquired:

Pledged for bills payable and letters
of credit
Pledged for bank loans

Cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated statement of cash flows

Cash and bank balances

KEE
The Group
2013 F 2012 €
2013 2012
AR®TT ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
53,941 48,018
128,411 40,677
182,352 88,695
(14,265) (8,453)
(114,146) (32,224)
53,941 48,018
5,013 3,223
83,098 25,863
88,111 29,086
142,052 77,104
KA T

The Company
20134 2012 &
2013 2012
AR¥T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
696 402
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R|ERR - ARE RS  RITE
BREEBTFRAAREIE  BAR
#171,364,000 7T (20124F : A R %
62,829,0007T) - AR TE] B B
BWEEMER - A - RIEH BKRE
ZLINEE BAGOI ) R(EETE - SE R
NEEERRE)  NEBEEERE
KEETINEEBZRITEABAR
rrqg °

RITESTIIREE ARITFRN XL
F B R ERERA R - 58 HATE B
RAFIEAENFAZE - WIREF
75 HATE HA 7 SROM R ERER A B, - dRTTHE
BEEERRITERERREERL
ZIRITA o RE RIRITHAR KB HIF
RITHFRZREEREE R FEES -

(a)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's cash and
bank balances and time deposit denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB171,364,000 (2012: RMB62,829,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between three months to
one year, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged bank
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks. The
carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances and the
pledged bank deposits approximate their fair values.
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2013 F 20124
2013 2012
AR®T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
eI E 5 R Trade payables 81,165 118,022
NS Bills payables 27,171 1,418
108,336 119,440
(a) IREHAK - BT ALY E (@) An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of
NEBIERZE®RSTAT the reporting period based on the invoice date is as
follows:
2013 F 20124
2013 2012
ARBTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
90H™A Within 90 days 80,587 84,386
91£180H 91 to 180 days 230 31,693
1812360 H 181 to 360 days 148 1,077
122F 1 to 2 years 46 194
HRi8 2 F Over 2 years 154 672
81,165 118,022
b ENESEZARE —KBR30ZE (b)  The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
120 B354 o normally settled within 30 to 120 days.
(©) MIBEHF  wEEHE A AEE (c)  An aged analysis of the bills payables as at the end of
ZEMRERERBSOTOT the reporting period based on bills issued date is as
follows:
20135 2012 4F
2013 2012
AR®T AREFT
RIVIB’000 RMB'000
90 A Within 90 days 18,306 629
91£180H 91 to 180 days 8,865 668
1812360 H 181 to 360 days - 121
27,171 1,418
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A58 A4
The Group The Company
20135 2012 2013 20125
2013 2012 2013 2012

ARBTR ARETT AR®TR ARETRL
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000

et EH Accruals 9,604 7,028 1,949 2,798
& Salary payable 9,385 11,620 - =
W mEREHEL Other payables for acquisition of
Hih R Z0E property, plant and equipment 8,070 10,332 - -
NEERATTE L Financial liabilities measured
THEE at amortised cost 27,059 28,980 1,949 2,798
B (P5E27) Deferred income (note 27) 1,005 1,055 - =
BPEH Deposits from customers - 1,414 - =
REBERE (iTa) Provision of warranty (note a) - 2,534 - -
H R HHIE Other tax payable 8,147 11,866 - =
36,211 45,849 1,949 2,798
Mtk - Note:
() PR B BB E) ST T (a) Analysis of movement of provision for warranty:
REHE
The Group
2013 F 20124
2013 2012
AR® TR AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
®1A18 At 1 January 2,534 =
FRNBEBRE Provision made during the year - 2,634
B & AIEAE Amount utilized (2,534) _
12 A318 At 31 December - 2534
EREELABEBAEEREZZEHZEET The provision for warranty represents the present value of
ZRBEEERTE 2 RREER @M L 2 E the directors’ best estimate of the future outflow of economic
EREMFTRE - ZHEDIRELIREBS benefits that will be required under the Group's obligations
DEBEL  BRTRE 2UERFEE for warranties under the signed agreements. The estimate
SEMTEERERCARTE  %HE has been made on the basis of historical warranty trends and
ATgE R IAE] o may vary as a result of new materials, altered manufacturing

processes or other events affecting product quality.
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AEH
The Group
2013 F 2012 £
2013 2012
AR¥T T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
®1A1BZEREE Carrying amount at 1 January 3,192 4,248
FRFRH Granted during the year 19,600 =
BERIEIRA (FI3E7) Released as income (note 7) (1,055) (1,055)
R12A31BZEREE Carrying amount at 31 December 21,737 3,193
BIEERLERA Current portion included in deferred
EstER M EMENFIE income, accruals and other
Z BVEAELS 5 (F5E 26) payables (note 26) (1,005) (1,055)
JEENHAER 7> Non-current portion 20,732 2,138

RTRBRFEEBRI 2 BAFHIEERER
BEXEMICCZAERME L& - RK
Rt nBEMREBELEEMLCCZA
BRBE REREE—IRITIN  ELEMRE
HABGRAF -

Annual Report 2013

The government grants have been received from various
government authorities specifically for the purchases of
qualified plant and equipment in respect of the production of
MLCC. Except for the condition that the government grants
must be specifically used for the purchases of qualified plant
and equipment in respect of the production of MLCC, there
are no other conditions attached to these grants.
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rEE
The Group

2013 & 2012 %

2013 2012

AR® TR AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

BHEAREBER—FANEE Secured and repayable within one year 170,275 144,599
(a) AEEZHRITERKLBITEERNAT (@) The Group's bank loans and bank facilities are secured

BiR by:

i =x& B A AREK (i)  certain of the Group's bank deposits amounting to
114,146,000 7T (20124 : AR RMB114,146,000 (2012: RMB32,224,000). The
#32,224,0007T) 2 & TR 1T pledged bank deposits will be released upon the
TEE o PRI IT RGNS settlement of the relevant bank loans;
ERERITERERERIER

(il % %A AR *16,500,0007T (i)  certain bills receivables amounting to
(20124 : A R % 17,618,000 RMB16,500,000 (2012: RMB17,618,000). The
L) ZETREKRERE - Frif# pledged bills receivables will be released upon the
EINEEEN SERBRTE settlement of the relevant bank loans; and
RIERRERR &

(i) AE£EMR2013F1283182 (iliy  certain buildings, plant and machinery, prepaid
ETEF BMENRESE - tib land lease payments and investment properties of
HERNZERIEEYE & the Group with carrying amounts of approximately
mE SR Y B ANRK RMB38,133,000, RMB51,651,000, RMB 1,204,000
38,133,000+ A R ¥ and RMB14,526,000 respectively as at 31
51,651,000~ A R #& December 2013 (2012: RMB31,332,000,
1,204,000 K& A R #& RMB104,717,000, RMB1,240,000 and
14,526,000 7T (2012 4F = % 7l RMB22,757,000 respectively).

B AR31,332,000T * AR
#104,717,000c + A B 8
1,240,000t & A R %
22,757,000 7T.) °
(b) AEFRITE L ARE 30,000,000 (b)) The secured bank loans of approximately
7T (20124 : A R #30,000,0007T ) RMB30,000,000 (2012: RMB30,000,000) and

& A E #140,275,000 7T (2012 £ : RMB140,275,000 (2012: RMB114,599,000) are

AR ¥114,599,00070) 7 Bl A A R denominated in RMB and United States dollars,

BN ETTHIE - respectively.

(c) WRITEXRREMELEEAFEEE - (c)  The carrying amounts of the bank loans approximate
their fair values.
d  RITERZEEZEFENTF1.04% (d) The effective floating interest rate of bank loans is

%£6.6% (20124 - 111 %ET7.22%) ©

1.04%-6.6% (2012: 1.11%-7.22%).
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(e)

(a)

REBB AT RAIEZ RITERIE -

FEIME — 1 FRER

BERREE

R2012%1 818
FRMNMRABRREM
AURENE/ (B

R2012512 8318 K
2013%F1 818

FRNMRABREREM
2AURENE/ (B

R2013F12A318
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At 1 January 2012
Credit/(charged) to
the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income
during the year

At 31 December 2012 and
1 January 2013
Credit/(charged) to
the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income
during the year

At 31 December 2013
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(e)  The Group has the following undrawn banking facilities:
rEER
The Group
2013 2012 %
2013 2012
AR®T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Floating rate — expiring within one
year 370,718 244,502
(a) Deferred tax assets
R HE EXES
BFziiEz RRREM 9% BER
ERBAEE THEERE BURERE RBEEEARE EER @t
Amortisation
of computer Impairment
software in Provision  Impairment  of items of
excess of against of trade property,
tax allowed  slow-moving and other plant and Accrued
depreciation inventories  receivables  equipment expense Total
ARETT  ARETR  AREFT ARETT ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
4 1,271 1,161 8 263 2,702
(4) 319 137 = (263) 189
= 1,590 1,298 3 = 2,891
- 970 (446) 356 = 880
- 2,560 852 359 - 3m
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(b)

BEERESE

7R2012%1 81H
FARGEEEREM
PR RN

MR2012%12 A31 B8R
201351518
FARGEERK
Hib 2 ER R NR

A2013%F12H31H

RIEFRBESEATERE  INEIREE
PR R BIRRERR SIS IS B
Bz EARIEBI10% W Rk TE
WA - ZIEEN2008F 1 A1 BfEA
W WAR2007F12 A3 AEZA
F 0w R B K B BB AR S AN A A P
BERERRFESRKZEE - AIEAKR
BRENRE  AEBBERBE XA
5% o E It + ANEE R A BAREK L
ZHEBARFHN 200841 A1 BEFE
X 2 B ) 53 R AR BB 5 8 8 AR FB 4D
o

R2013F 12 A31 B » BHRETAE
E BB A A BRELZ K T o f 28 F I &
BEARELEHIBBEER T HR(2012
FE) -

(b) Deferred tax liabilities

BB
Withholding
taxes
AREFT
RMB’000
At 1 January 2012 5,605
Charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income
during the year 405
At 31 December 2012 and
1 January 2013 6,010
Charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income
during the year 21
At 31 December 2013 6,031

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate
is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2013, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2012: nil) for taxes
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
certain of the Group’s subsidiaries.
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() KRERBZIETRBEE

M2013412 318 » KEBA K
FA 778 &5 18 49 A R 9,202,000 7T
(20124 : AR¥7,740,0007T) #51R
BIRITROAELE N E M o 12013
F12 8318 - AREBERERRE
& &% B BE Y1 A] B H BR R SR B SR B A
BB AREER  WEECHERE
RA B ISR R R R RE R (20124 ¢
;) o

NAalEe—TRERERE([ZEr8))
MEAEBEEBERINELERZAERS
HEREBEHRER - ZAS2ABERR
B2 B 1E (a) AL BE(AIAK B QR A E (T #
BEREE  FM2BEBES  HER
BRABETE2BIFEOAL: b ANEET
AIRKERRNESHIREBES (BIEET
FEMITESE) O AKEERKERTNE
EREERE  ASKEEMKE QRN
B RGEER : ) AEETMKER
AMER B ¥EBRE AR B
AN REIRE: HRASEE
Al B A B R aR AT - B 5T - MR A
TR EMEN  BE - BESXEMRE
BATSEE (g EmATMA T RS
At e ZEt 2172 2007F 11 B30H &£ 4% -
MmBRIEMESHSIER] - EEBZARLI10F
NBRK °
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(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately RMB9,202,000 (2012:
RMB7,740,000) which will expire within 5 years under
the current tax legislation. No deferred tax was
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2013 (2012: nil) since it is
not probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme
include (a) any proposed employee, any full-time or part-time
employee, or a person for the time being seconded to work
full-time or part-time for any member of the Group; (b) a
director or proposed director (including an independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group; (c) a direct
or indirect shareholder of any member of the Group; (d) a
supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group; (e)
a customer, consultant, business or joint venture partner,
franchisee, contractor, agent or representative of any
member of the Group; (f) a person or entity that provides
design, research, development or other support or any
advisory, consultancy, professional or other services to any
member of the Group; and (g) an associate of any of the
foregoing persons. The Scheme became effective on 30
November 2007 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain in force for 10 years from that date.
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other share options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other schemes
shall not exceed 30% of the Company'’s issued share capital
from time to time. The maximum number of unexercised
share options currently permitted to be granted under the
Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

The total number of securities available for issue under the
share option scheme as at 31 December 2013 was
14,800,000 shares which represented approximately 4% of
the issued share capital of the Company at 31 December
2013.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company's shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted under the Scheme is
determinable by the directors of the Company, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the
share options or the expiry of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than whichever the highest of
(i) the nominal value of the Company's shares; (ii) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of grant of the share options; and (iii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

2013 £ 20124
BRITEE BREHKE iR ES B
Exercise 2013 2012
price Number Number
per share of options of options
1715 R Exercise period
2011 EERE 2011 results announcement
HHEIZE 2017 4F date to 29 November
11 A29H 2017 HK$1.052 7% 7T 14,800,000 16,300,000

Annual Report 2013



5 R 2R Pl &

HZE 20134 12 A 31 H LEFZ For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012%F
2013 2012
=T RIRHE R Gk TR AR e
MEFY AT Jill: RS2 A[EAT
fTE ROEE 1 !
Weighted Number Weighted Number
average of shares average of shares
exercise issuable exercise issuable
price under price under
per share options per share options
R1A1B#ATE  Outstanding at 1 January HK$1.052% 7t 16,300,000  HK$1.052/8 7T 17,200,000
Rk Forfeited HK$1.05238 7t (1,500,000)  HK$1.05278 T (900,000)
12 A31 HiHATTE Outstanding at 31 December ~ HK$1.052 8 7t 14,800,000  HK$1.052/8 7T 16,300,000
R12 A31BA{T#  Exercisable at 31 December  HK$1.05235 ¢ 14,800,000  HK$1.052787C 16,300,000
720134 12 A 31 B M ARITEERE The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had an
2 11 {E {8 A1.0627% (20124 ¢ exercise price of HK$1.052 (2012: HK$1.052) and a
1.052#7T) - HIEFHRTEHF weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.9 years
HAA3.9F (20124 : 4.94F) - (2012: 4.9 years).
PEHBEREANBEFNERS - All share options are vested in prior years.
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The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$25,000 (HK$20,000 prior to June
2012). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group also participates in a state-managed retirement
benefit scheme operated by the government of the PRC. The
employees of the Group’'s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute 4.9% of payroll
costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of RMB3,514,000
(2012: RMB3,254,000) represents contributions paid to these
schemes by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013. As at 31 December 2013, there were no material
forfeitures available to offset the Group's future contributions
(2012: nil).
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(i)

(ii)

BAERBRITRE

ETE
1,000,000,000 f& &M 1B
0.01 BTz EBmK

BETRAR
405,500,000 i% =R E1E
0.01 BTz &M

HERARBTIT

HBB 2 A R
EROBE - LRSRBHE
ARAEELTA—BRR
o AR BB AR
BT EETHRSE -

BB EBRESTBIRT 2D
KB E2013F K&2012F12 A
INEIFE - $HEREBEAQF
2 BT B3 1T IR ©

BOBBREOE TRHAEARRE
ARRB)—BEBBEZERN - 1
&R AR Em R ARITEZ
FERE Z IR - A R ARRE B AX
BZE— BB BENMHB
HAMFES0

(i)

Authorised:

Authorised and issued share capital

1,000,000,000 ordinary

shares of HK$0.01 each

Issued and fully paid:
405,500,000 ordinary

shares of HK$0.01 each

Equivalent to RMB'000

(ii)

2013 2012
2013 2012
FHBxT FHETT
HK$°000 HK$'000
10,000 10,000
4,055 4,055
3,824 3,824

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company's residual assets.

Shares issued under share option scheme

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012, no shares were issued under the
Company'’s share option scheme.

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company. Terms of the
unexpired and unexercised share options at the
end of the reporting period and further details of
these options are set out in note 30 to the
financial statements.
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At 1 January 2012
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Share options forfeited

At 31 December 2012 and
1 January 2013

Loss for the year and
total comprehensive loss
for the year

Share options forfeited

At 31 December 2013
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The Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.

The Company
NG U T
Attributable to owners of the Company
B BRiEER BHES BRERE ZREE B
Share Share
Share premium  Contributed option  Accumulated Total
capital account surplus reserve losses equity
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
3824 104,657 364,952 4,785 (40492) 437,726
= = = = (6,039) (5,039)
- - - (225) 225 -
3824 104,657 364,952 4,560 (45,306) 432,687
= = = = (7,688) (7,688)
- - - (370) 370 -
3,824 104,657 364,952 4,190 (52,624) 424,999

(i)  Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman lIslands, the share premium account of
the Company is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which a dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.
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lii) BWEERER
AEHE
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(ii)

Contributed surplus
The Group
The contributed surplus of the Group represents:

— the difference of RMB203,536,000 being
the excess of the nominal value of the
shares and contributed surplus of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation over the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued in exchange
therefor;

— the deficit of RMB2,823,000 arising from the
acquisition of DG Eyang from the non-
controlling shareholders of DG Eyang;

— the deficit of RMB1,774,000 arising from the
disposal of Shenzhen Eycom Technology
Co., Ltd. (“SZ Eycom”) to the related party;

— the credit of RMB9,468,000 arising from the
deemed contribution from the shareholders
when acquiring Shenzhen Eyang Energy
Company Limited and its subsidiary (the
“Energy Group”) during the year ended 31
December 2012; and

— the deficit of RMB650,000 arising from
deemed distribution to the shareholders
when disposing the Energy Group during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

The Company

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the cost of
investments in subsidiaries pursuant to the group
reorganization and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued.
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(iii) Share option reserve
The share option reserve comprises the portion of
the fair value of unexercised share options granted
that has been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(q)(ii).

(liv) Exchange fluctuation reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(u).

(v) Statutory reserve

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, certain
PRC subsidiaries in the Group are required to
appropriate 10% of their profit after tax (after
offsetting prior year losses) to the statutory
reserve until such reserve reaches 50% of their
registered capital. Transfers to the reserve must
be made before distribution of dividends to
shareholders. Upon approval by relevant
authorities, the statutory reserve can be utilised to
offset the accumulated losses or to increase the
registered capital of the subsidiary, provided that
the balance after such issue is not less than 25%
of its registered capital.

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximize shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
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as follows:

Bank loans

Trade and bills payables

Other payables and accruals

Less: Cash and cash equivalents
(note 24)

Net debt

Total equity

Equity and net debt

Gearing ratios

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by equity plus net debt. Net debt is
calculated as the sum of bank loans, trade and bills
payables, and other payables and accruals (excluding
deferred income, deposits from customers and
provisions of warranty) less cash and cash equivalents.
Equity represents equity attributable to owners of the
Company (excluding share capital). The Group's policy
is to keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods are

REH
The Group

2013 5§ 2012 €
2013 2012
AR® T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
170,275 144,599
108,336 119,440
35,206 40,846
(142,052) (77,104)
171,765 227,781
438,147 441,866
609,912 669,647
28% 34%

2013FER



MR2012%F9A25H » NEBEE HEI 7 —
MROEEHE(ROEBERHE]) - Hit -
NEEE B G E B A A R # 36,000,000
TZENRE(ESRED  WERESE
B K S E 2RI R LR AR
R REMBRAB([ERER]) Z2100%
RAHEZ - M REB B ZE2012F12 A
SNALEFEZRBEXEATBFE(BHK
MERNMBIECEREBER) PRARK
8,000,000 L ([REFE]) - RiZE&BE T
PAGAE - ZWEEIHER20126F11 A 12
HSERK °

HAER(RES]D) AREZE (AR A2
JEBITEE (R 201341 A 256 HEHE) 3%
) BHEEAE(RRFZHITERT(R
201349 A 18 BEH L) B H) KFEYImF
BIRESEERAR(FYFHBEE]D -
PRIELEE  BREERBABEE(R
20139 A18AERM)H AR RRIITE
£ HSHEEBEZIHAERIIFEREZ
BRER o

HERRBERIABRIFRE MHIHE 2 B EZ
RArEFR(ERMNRFED PRRE
B BHARETXNETIANGE
Z—EFR(Z8ME]D :

ZHMAE = (RENE — £ERNEFR)
X4.5

EEIRERE N 2012 F 2 F 2 KL BRI KR
RABCSEBERFE BERMNBFEERR

=

Annual Report 2013

R 5 R 7R Pl &

HZ= 20134 12 A 31 H IL & JZ For the year ended 31 December 2013

On 25 September 2012, the Group entered into a share
purchase agreement (“Share Purchase Agreement”) with the
vendors, pursuant to which the Group has conditionally
agreed to purchase 100% of the equity interest of Shenzhen
Eyang Energy Company Limited and its subsidiary (the
“Energy Group"”), which was engaged in the manufacture
and sale of batteries, for a consideration payable of RMB36
million (“Consideration Payable”). The amount would be
adjusted if the audited consolidated net profit after tax and
before extraordinary items of the Energy Group for the year
ended 31 December 2012 should be less than RMB8 million
("Guaranteed Profit”). The acquisition was completed on 12
November 2012.

The vendors (“Original Vendors”) were Ms. Shuang Mei, non-
executive director (who resigned on 25 January 2013) and
shareholder of the Company, Mr. Liao Jie, executive director
(who resigned on 18 September 2013) and shareholder of the
Company, and Shenzhen Eyang Investment Group Limited
("SZ Eyang Investment”). Mr. Chen Weirong, Mr. Liao Jie,
and Mr. Xu Chuncheng (who retired on 18 September 2013),
executive directors of the Company, and Ms. Shuang Mei
were the shareholders of SZ Eyang Investment.

In the event that the audited consolidated net profit after tax
and before extraordinary items (“Actual Net profit”) is less
than the Guaranteed Profit, the vendors should pay to the
Group an amount (“Shortfall Compensation”) calculated in
accordance with the following formula:

Shortfall Compensation = (Guaranteed Profit — Audited Net
Profit) X 4.5

If the Energy Group should record a net loss in the audited
financial statements for the full year of 2012, the Actual Net
Profit shall be deemed to be zero.
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The Consideration Payable after deduction of the Shortfall
Compensation (“Net Contingent Consideration Payable”)
shall not in any event be lower than the net assets of the
Energy Group as at 31 December 2012 in such audited
financial statements.

The Net Contingent Consideration Payable should be settled
by the Group on 31 December 2013 or on such later date as
both vendors and the Group may agree.

The directors of the Company considered that the business
combination would allow the Group to expand into the battery
business, which had a wide application on renewable energy.

As the Energy Group recorded a net loss for the year ended
31 December 2012, the adjusted consideration should equal
to the audited net asset of the Energy Group as at 31
December 2012.

During the period from the date of acquisition to the end of
the reporting period, the Energy Group contributed
RMB11,199,000 to the revenue of the Group and loss of
RMB4,846,000 to the loss of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Had the acquisition occurred on 1 January 2012, the revenue
(including continuing and discontinued operations) and loss of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 would have
been RMB618,430,000 and RMB9,142,000 respectively. The
directors considered these ‘pro-forma’ numbers represent an
approximate measurement of the performance of the
combined group on an annualized basis for providing a
reference point for comparison in future periods.
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assumed at the acquisition date.

Consideration:
At acquisition date

Fair value of the Net Contingent Consideration Payable

The following table summarises the consideration paid for the
Energy Group, the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities

ARBTT
RMB’000

3,510

The fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and

liabilities assumed at the acquisition date were
as follows:

Plant and equipment

Cash and bank balances

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Inventories

Tax payable

Trade payables

Accruals and other payables

Identifiable net assets
Indemnification asset receivable
Deemed contribution from the shareholders

Cash inflow arising on acquisition:
Cash and cash equivalents balance acquired

2,799
885
36,834
19,258
5,145
(8,292)
(36,133)
(15,810)

4,686
8,292
(9,468)

3,510

885
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At the date of acquisition, the fair value of the Net Contingent
Consideration Payable represented the present value of the
higher of (i) excess of the Consideration Payable over the
estimated Shortfall Compensation or (ii) the estimated net
assets of the Energy Group as at 31 December 2012 in the
audited financial statements.

The estimated Shortfall Compensation and the estimated net
assets of the Energy Group as at 31 December 2012 in the
audited financial statements were determined by applying
income approach and projected payoff using the Monte Carlo
simulation for the year ended 31 December 2012 of the
Energy Group. In accordance with the Share Purchase
Agreement, the range of outcomes (undiscounted) of the Net
Contingent Consideration Payable should be RMB nil to
RMB36 million.

Subsequent to the acquisition date, the fair value of the Net
Contingent Consideration Payable decreased from
RMB3,510,000 to nil, using unobservable inputs (Level 3), as
a result of the fact that Energy Group recorded a net loss for
the year ended 31 December 2012 and had net liabilities at
31 December 2012 was RMB352,000.

Acquisition related costs amounting to RMB410,000 have
been excluded from the consideration transferred and have
been recognised as administrative expenses in the current
year in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

As the total consideration transferred by the Group for the
acquisition of Energy Group was lowered than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, deemed contribution from the
shareholders of RMB9,468,000 was recognised immediately
in contribution surplus in the reserve.

The acquired trade and other receivables with a fair value of
RMB36,834,000 and RMB10,092,000 respectively had gross
contractual amount of RMB36,834,000 and RMB10,092,000
respectively. The best estimate at the acquisition date of
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected is nil.
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The vendors have contractually agreed to indemnify the
Group for the underprovision of tax payable for the pre-
acquisition period. An indemnification asset of
RMB8,292,000, equivalent to the fair value of the indemnified
liability, has been recognised by the Group. As is the case
with the indemnified liability there has been no change in the
amount recognised for the indemnification assets as at 31
December 2012, as there has been no change in the range of
outcomes or assumptions used to develop the estimate of
the liability.

On 15 November 2013, the Group entered into the share
disposal agreement (“Share Disposal Agreement”) with the
original vendors of Energy Group (“Original Vendors”) under
which it was agreed that the Original Vendors should
repurchase 100% of the equity interest of the Energy Group
("Disposal”). In addition, since the audited financial
statements of the Energy Group prepared in accordance with
the generally accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong
have not yet been finalized as at signing date of the Share
Disposal Agreement, the Group and the Original Vendors
agreed to amend the terms of the Share Purchase Agreement
such that references to “audited consolidated accounts” of
the Energy Group were amended to “unaudited consolidated
management accounts” of the Energy Group. The Group and
the Original Vendors further confirmed that the amount of
Net Contingent Consideration Payable by the Group to the
Original Vendors under the Share Purchase Agreement
should be adjusted to RMB9,200,000 (“Adjusted
Consideration Payable”) being the amount of the net assets
of the Energy Group at 31 December 2012 as recorded in
such unaudited consolidated management accounts.
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D HEHER2013F 12 A24 B 827K
BRI AS EEAE  BRARER M
HEEBEEMN2013F12827B5%K » =%
ABRMREFEZEAEARB T LHEL
FEEMAREBARE 9,200,000 T2 EHE
BRRMMIEARED IR - TAHEENER
BEPHER ©

BEBROLERSE  RESRRAAEES
2 R R B4R EE A A R10,400,0007T -
Heh AR#9,200,000 7t ([HEEHAME ) # A
REHCABRRSRE MBTREAR
1,200,000 T * B R &E 75 R 2013412
A31 A2 BUBREI A -

The Share Disposal Agreement was approved, confirmed and
ratified by an extraordinary general meeting held on 24
December 2013 and the Disposal was completed on 27
December 2013. The difference between the carrying amount
of the Net Contingent Consideration Payable of RMB nil and
the Adjusted Consideration Payable of RMB9,200,000
represented the deemed distribution to shareholders and was
recognised in contribution surplus in reserve.

Pursuant to the Share Disposal Agreement, the total
consideration payable by the Original Vendors to the Group
was RMB10,400,000 in which RMB9,200,000 (”Set-off
Consideration”) was set off against the Adjusted
Consideration Payable and the remaining consideration of
RMB1,200,000 shall be satisfied by the Original Vendors in
cash on 31 December 2013 or later.
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REEBR - g REBEEEFENT ¢ The net assets of Energy Group at the date of disposal were

as follows:
AREFT
RMB'000
Wz 2 RE Consideration received
FEWAR(E Consideration receivable 1,200
HEEAE Set-off Consideration 9,200
BRE Total consideration 10,400
BEHEREREEEER Analysis of assets and liabilities of
BEDN: Energy Group disposed:
B Plant and equipment 362
R & MIRTTHE R Cash and bank balances 6,817
JEWE 5 BRFX Trade receivables 1,562
A ES Bills receivables 607
TR FRERIZS Prepayments and deposits 9,759
FE Inventories 1,084
JESRIIA Tax payable (9,575)
FERTE SRR Trade payables (2,091)
et & A K E th FE < FRIE Accruals and other payables (14,967)
HEBBEFE Net liabilities disposed of (6,442)
HEMB AT ZRED Deemed distribution to shareholders on
BERDIK disposal of subsidiaries
BRE Total consideration 10,400
BUHER A EFE Net liabilities derecognized 6,442
o8& B U TE (MRt ) Indemnification asset receivables (note i) (8,292)
HESHEE ZRIERFTE Deemed contribution from shareholders arising
from the Disposal 8,550
CRAREEMREEL ZRIER Deemed distribution to shareholders arising
AR Ik (B E i) from Adjusted Consideration Payable (note ii) (9,200)
RIBRD B E 7k 2 R AEM Deemed distribution to shareholders upon
f& 3 2K Share Disposal Agreement (650)
HEELERSER Cash outflow arising on disposal
FEERERBEEEEY cash and cash equivalent disposed of (6,817)
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FI5E - Notes
M20126 12 A31 8 AEEHE £
8 & E WG TE AR % 8,292,0007T * T3
REARARARESAETIRBATE 2
ERRIENRET BB MRS - #=6
REBELEE R - B &I E A
78 NEBENFY ERZSEETCZIE
NRBEHTMAR - RRRAEEREE
SEBEEEREZRETR 2 EMAR
H - MREEREBE L SERIUEEREE
BEERKREBRE -

@i (i

(i) RERRRDIKERARNREFEZ R

EEECHEERNAEIZHE -

(ii)

ERERERNAEEHIREAZEE BF

At 31 December 2012, the Group had an indemnification asset
receivable of RMB8,292,000 provided by the Original Vendors
for the underprovision of tax payable for the pre-acquisition
period estimated by the directors of the Company. Up to the
disposal date of the Energy Group, there was no action from
the tax authorities and the Group did not make any payment
for those underprovided tax payable. The directors of the
Company considered that the Group should no longer bear
such underprovided tax payable and it was appropriate to
derecognise the indemnification asset receivable when the
Energy Group was disposed.

The deemed distribution to shareholders represented the
difference between the carrying amount of the Net Contingent
Consideration Payable and the Adjusted Consideration Payable.

The net assets/liabilities of HK Weichang at the date of loss

FREAT of control were as follows:

ARETT

RMB'000
BEERE: Net liabilities:
H A U RIR Other receivables 1,741
Re MRTTHERH Cash and bank balances 159
JEFLIE Tax payables (1,900)
BE/AEFE Net assets/liabilities -
KE—BMB AT ZZFI#E 2 Wz Gain on loss of control of a subsidiary -
KE—ERB AR 2 EHI# Net cash outflow arising on loss of control
MR F 5 of a subsidiary

Re MRTTHE R Cash and bank balances (159)
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(i)

Within one year

As lessor

The Group

The Group leases its investment properties (note
17) under operating lease arrangements, with
leases negotiated for terms ranging from one to
Six years.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as
follows:

In the second to fifth years,

inclusive

(ii)

2013 F 2012 4
2013 2012
AR® T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
4,920 4,470
5,007 2,903
9,927 7,373
As lessee
The Group

The Group leases certain of its factories and office
premises under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms of
two years.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

20135 2012 4F

2013 2012

AR¥TF T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

1FR Within one year 146 273
F2F In the second year 114 =
260 273

Annual Report 2013
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36. RE®) 36. COMMITMENTS (continued)
(b) BAREE (b) Capital commitments
2013 F 20124
2013 2012
AR®Tx ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEFEE S Contracted, but not provided for:
R Nk 2E Plant and machinery 3,009 115

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
The Group had the following material transactions with
related parties during the year and balances with related
parties at the end of the reporting period:

37. REDRSRIEER
AEERFANEBET 2EAR S RRK
EHRERDET ZEHIT

(a) KBRS

(a)  Recurring transactions

BELER REME 2013 F 20124
Name of parties Nature of transactions 2013 2012
AR¥TR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REMHABEERRAA B R BRE 2 B WA (v)(vi)
(M=) Rental income received from
Dongguan Guangtong DG Guangtong (iv)(vi)
Enterprise Co., Ltd.
(“DG Guangtong”) (i) 57 57
HmEGEEERAA B R fE 5 E] 2 2 WA (iv) (vii)
(M) i) Rental income received from
Dongguan Deyang Industrial DG Deyang (iv)(vii)
Co., Ltd. ("DG Deyang”) (ii) 36 36
RN B (i) ARIIEREE MLCC (v)
SZ Eycom {iii) Sale of MLCC to SZ Eycom (v) 5,913 4,438
BARYIEBE 2 S WA (iv)vii)
Rental income received from
SZ Eycom (iv)(viii) 2,129 1,993
FHRER (EB)BRAT 2013 EFHR

149




GEE

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

RENBZBRBARDNTES
BRI 2 LB IA K

REEBZBRB/ARDRZBIRE
RERLZNE -

FIMEB RRBRBARA AT
EHERELE  ARRFPTEER
4 (201351 A25 B &) &
RARITES B LLE (R 2013F
9 A 18 HEHE) »

7o R 7 5T ST 2 T B R
E AR 2 AT -

ZER SRR EIRTAETT ©

R2013412 A31 8 * AR#170,000
JL (20124 : AR¥227,0007T) 5
A A (RFTEES6()) ©

M2013412 A318 + AR%36,000
JL(20124 « AR #72,0007T) 5
AEEETRLANE (R E36()0) ©

20135128318 + AR¥3371,000

J0(2012%F : AR ¥ 4,257,0007T)
T A BT FEE(RMTEES6(@)0) ©

WERZ BRIZE

BELER

Name of parties

ARIIMER
SZ Eycom
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Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

RXEMHE

Nature of transactions

The shareholders of DG Guangtong are the brothers and
sisters of Mr. Chen, an executive director of the
Company.

The shareholders of DG Deyang are the brothers of Ms.
Luo Zhanli, a shareholder of the Company.

The ultimate shareholders of SZ Eycom are Mr. Chen,
an executive director of the Company, Ms. Shuang, a
non-executive director of the Company who resigned on
25 January 2013, and Mr. Liao, an executive director of
the Company who resigned on 18 September 2013.

The tenancy agreements entered into between the
Group and the related parties are based on mutually
agreed terms.

The transactions were conducted in accordance with
normal commercial terms.

At 31 December 2013, RMB170,000 (2012:
RMB227,000) was included in operating lease
commitments as set out in note 36(a)(i).

At 31 December 2013, RMB36,000 (2012: RMB72,000)
was included in operating lease commitments as set out
in note 36(a)(i).

At 31 December 2013, RMB3,371,000 (2012:

RMB4,257,000) was included in operating lease
commitments as set out in note 36(a)(i).

Service fee received

B ARYIEBEUE RIS E ()

Service fee received from

SZ Eycom (i)

2013 F 2012 &
2013 2012
ARET ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
- 95
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KERBEWSAT
HZE2012F12A31HILFE -
REBERRIFHEE - BL
TREEE(BRBARRRRE
75U EE AL TR S B 2 & FPARAE o
BRI MIFESS ©
HZE2013F12A31HILFE -
AEERREALEERER
ZEERE FBHRME
34 -

TN E

RELEH

Name of parties

IR
SZ Eycom

BERHTFH

RELEH

Name of parties

IR
SZ Eycom

Acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group acquired the entire equity interest in the
Energy Group from SZ Eyang Investment, Ms.
Shuang and Mr. Liao, related parties of the
Company. The details were set out in note 33.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Group disposed of the entire equity interest in the
Energy Group to Original Vendors. The details
were set out in note 34.

Sale of battery

XEME 2013 F 20124
Nature of transactions 2013 2012
ARET ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

RLERIIE I E T A (i) - 51

Sale of battery to SZ Eycom (i)

IV. Purchase of mobile phone

TEME 2013 20124
Nature of transactions 2013 2012
AR®Tx ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

BaRYIEEE SR e FH ()

Purchase of mobile phone

from SZ Eycom (ii) - 198
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Name of parties

DG Guangtong

fias -
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V.

RHME

Purchase of fixed asset

Nature of transactions

BR=ABBEEEEEE

Purchase of fixed asset from

DG Guangtong

()  AEEEFRIEBET LR
BEHZ - Bt RYER
BRAAREXNEERSH 2
R & (RBERYEBETR
BAKEEHZEMEERZ

0.3% &) °

(i) &
7

FEdFR
AYIER
BRERMRARAT
([&&ERD O
RRL EBEENR
ARAR(TZBIEA)) )

AmFEERERAR
(IEz8eiR ) i
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Notes:

(i)

2013 F 2012 &
2013 2012
AR® TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
43 =

The Group and SZ Eycom entered into a logistics
cooperation agreement under which SZ Eycom
would pay to the Group for each transaction a
service fee which would be calculated at 0.3% of
the value of the goods which are shipped by the
Group as instructed by SZ Eycom.

The transactions were conducted in accordance
with normal commercial terms.

The Group
20135
2013
ARBTR
RMB’000
Due from
DG Guangtong 814
DG Deyang 3
SZ Eycom 1,657
Hong Kong Eycom Technology
Co., Limited ("HK Eycom”) (i) -
Anhui Century Eycom
Digital Technology Co., Ltd.
("Anhui Eycom”) (i) 112
Shenzhen Eyang Energy
Company Ltd
(“Eyang Energy") (iii) 2,888
5,474

20124
2012

ARBTT
RMB'000

4,437
129
1,022

4,986

295

10,869

BEALESE
Maximum amount outstanding

2013 20125
2013 2012
AR¥TT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
4,785 4,437
357 829
6,753 3,267
4,986 4,986
413 295
11,911 -
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The Group
BEAGHEEHR
Maximum amount outstanding
2013% 2012F 20135 20126
2013 2012 2013 2012

ARBTR ARETRT ARMTR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

FEfT50E Due to
EY Ocean Management EY Ocean Management Limited
Limited ([EY Ocean]) {iv) ("EY Ocean”) iv) - 35 35 35
Legend New-Tech Investment  Legend New-Tech Investment
Limited ([ Legend New- Limited (“Legend New-Tech")
Tech]) (v) (iv) - 4 4 4
Ever-win Management Limited  Ever-win Management Limited
(TEver-win]) (iv) (“Ever-win") (iv) - 1 1 1
REB RN RERAT Anhui Weichang New Energy
(IZBERD W) Co., Ltd (*Anhui Weichang") (v) 2,400 - 2,400 -
2,400 40
¥ /N The Company
BEAGHEHE
Maximum amount outstanding
2013 2012F 20135 2012%
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARBTR  AR®TT AR¥TR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FERT5E Due to
EY Ocean Management EY Ocean Management Limited
Limited ([EY Ocean ) (iv) ("EY Ocean”) (iv) - 35 35 35
Legend New-Tech Investment  Legend New-Tech Investment
Limited ([Legend New- Limited (“Legend New-Tech")
Tech]) (v) (iv) - 4 4 4
Ever-win Management Limited Ever-win Management Limited
(TEver-win]) (iv) ("Ever-win”) (iv) - 1 1 1
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Notes:

(i) The shareholder of HK Eycom is the brother of Ms. Luo
Zhanli.

(ii) The ultimate shareholders of Anhui Eycom are Mr. Chen,
Ms. Shuang and Mr. Liao.

(i) The director of Eyang Energy is Mr. Chen, an executive
director of the Company.

(iv)  EY Ocean, Legend New-Tech and Ever-win are the
shareholders of the Company.

(v)  The beneficial shareholders of Anhui Weichang are Mr.
Chen, Ms. Shuang and Mr. Liao.

(vi)  For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the
balances with related parties are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

(vi)  The carrying amounts of these balances approximate
their fair values.

All members of key management personnel are
directors of the Company and the remuneration for
them is disclosed in note 11 and as follows:

2013 F 2012 &

2013 2012

ARET T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

HHES R Short-term employee benefits 1,368 2,251
EEBRZETR Post-employment benefits 50 62
1,418 2,313

Annual Report 2013
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FEEZTESRTABEAERITER
ReRRITEHRREERRITER - B
EMTAZIERNNAAREEZREE
e AKBEHESRERNHELEE
ErHEMeREEREE  PINEKRES
RN BN E B

AEBEHMTAS R TERARBNERE
& SNERRR - EERRERBESRER -
EEEERUHATESHRR 2 BX
BRABCRBRT -

FEERFAT

R2013% K20126128318  ff
BAERMTAZEEEREAVEZMH
THEEERER -

FEH
) FEERRERAXZHTBET
BTEGNEENERAEE
ARBIEBR AR - AEE
ERA—ABRREEREE
RENRSETTETR S N
R AR TS ERER

(i) BRREUE 5 AR B H At e WK
AR R BRE T AT =
RERREERE  BEES
REEERR  HEERZE
EERR - AEETEHHEE
I2EBAZHBRRRIER
ETEENG - ZFHETE
HUEBABENREERE
RIXfEESN XEREF RE
BABLHMERERBRZEE
Ef e AREYARESRE
EERGETER BEEZER
R—MRAEKRERHREF2E5
A REIE] -

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank loans, cash and bank balances and pledged bank
deposit. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

The Group and the Company

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values at 31
December 2013 and 2012.

The Group

(i) Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in a financial loss to the Group. The Group has
adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of
financial loss from defaults.

(i) In respect of trade and other receivables and
amounts due from related parties, in order to
minimise risk, the management has a credit policy
in place and the exposure to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluation
of debtors’ financial position and condition is
performed on each and every major debtor
periodically. These evaluations focus on the
debtors’ past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the debtor operates. The Group does not
require collateral in respect of its financial assets.
Trade receivables are usually due within 2 to 5
months from the date of billing.
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The Group (continued)

(i) In respect of trade receivables, the Group's
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The
default risk of the industry in which customers
operate also has an influence on credit risk. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group has a
certain concentration of credit risk as 3% (2012:
13%) and 11% (2012: 23%) of the trade
receivables, amount due from related parties and
bills receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers
respectively. Taking into account the
creditworthiness of the Group's customers, the
credit risk measures and the historical levels of
the bad debts, the directors consider that such
concentration of credit risk would not result in
significant credit default exposure to the Group.

(iv) In respect of the credit risk on liquid funds, the
risk is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The Company

The directors consider that there is no significant credit
risk on receivables from subsidiaries given their strong
financial background and good credibility. The Company
has concentration of credit risk as 74% (2012: 65%) on
the amounts due from subsidiaries is due from one
subsidiary.

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances
exposure is considered minimal as such amounts are
placed in banks in Hong Kong with good reputation and
credit ratings.
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FEH

AEEEHOT SN EEBEBRTE
EAREEME BN EZEBBRER
MAREMX 25 HEREFRERM -

AEEZESREMNERRKREZRT
B RRITIERBE (ZEERFEE
RHiFE28) - BIRE BB KT
&) - WERNFH ERE— PR FIE

J—ll/*/\
REE Z SRITERBE R R &5
iﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬂ?ﬁ‘%*&i‘%%&% o

i F=EER
TRADAEBERRREH

R FIEER

FEEN Variable rate borrowings:
RITER Bank loans

Ep Total borrowings

The Group

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's debt
obligations with variable interest rates and time deposits
with fixed interest rates which are short term.

The Group's exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
relates primarily to variable-rate bank borrowings (see
note 28 for details of these borrowings). The
management continuously monitors interest rate
fluctuation and will consider further hedging interest
rate risk should the need arise.

The effective interest rates and terms of repayment of
the bank loans of the Group are set out in note 28 to
the financial statements.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’'s borrowings at the end of the
reporting period:

A58
The Group
2013 & 20124
2013 2012

ERFE AR%TxR ERFIE  AR®TT

Effective Effective
interest rate RMB'000 interest rate RMB'000

% %
1.04-6.6 170,275 -722 144,599
170,275 144,599
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The Group (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative financial instruments at
the end of the reporting period. For variable-rate
borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming the
borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would decrease/increase the Group's
profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately RMB1,339,000 (2012: increase/
decrease the Group's loss after tax and retained
profits by approximately RMB1,133,000). Other
components of consolidated equity would not
change in response to the general increase/
decrease in interest rates.

The Company
The directors consider that the interest rate risk is
insignificant for the Company.

The Group

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales, purchases or bank loans by
operating group entities in currencies other than the
entities’ functional currencies. The Group tends to
accept foreign currency exchange risk avoidance when
arriving at purchase and sale contracts to minimise its
transactional currency exposures. The Group takes
rolling forecast on the foreign currency revenue and
expenses, and matches the currency and the amounts
incurred, so as to alleviate the impact on business due
to exchange rate fluctuations.



5 R 2R Pl &

HZE 20134 12 A 31 H LEFZ For the year ended 31 December 2013

REBR(AE) The Group (continued)

TRFNAEERNRERRAETH The following table details the Group's exposure at the
BERERK - ZEERR AR end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
BEMIEEE I EETEND recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
R ﬁ?&%fﬁ MEL - t2HRE B currency other than the functional currency of the entity
mE @ EREAARESR - WAF to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the

® A E‘Uﬁﬂﬁﬂlﬁﬁiﬁiﬁ amounts of the exposure are shown in RMB, translated

using the spot rate at the year end date.

HNEREUARBRER)
Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)
2013% 20126
2013 2012
in B = e B A
United United
States  Hong Kong Japanese States Hong Kong Japanese
Dollars Dollars Yen Dollars Dollars Yen

ARBTR  ARBTR ARMTR ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
RMB"000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

EWE 5B R E M EYWEIE Trade and other receivables 29,980 6,076 137 31,116 19,846 -
BEREDR BeRFITES Pledged deposits and cash

and bank balances 3,894 6,862 232 16,933 8,933 -
EREFRIREMENTIE Trade and other payables (44,143) (3,825) (620) (57,907) (8,405) (3,894)
RITER Bank loans (140,275) - - (114,478) - -

ERREERAEMEESN  Netexposure arising from
FER recognised assets and liabilities (150,544) 9,113 (251) (124.336) 20,374 (3,894)

2013FER
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The Group (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the United States dollar, Hong Kong dollar
and Japanese yen exchange rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax.

2013 F 20124
2013 2012
BRETER A BRETSHA
5y | D -5 b | A <5 ) | Z v b 14
(R4 (B2) OR) CR)

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

Increase/ in profit Increase/ in profit
(decrease) before (decrease) before
inrate  income tax in rate income tax
ARBTR ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

5 (7,527) 5 (6,217)

(5) 1527 (5) 6,217

5 456 5 1,019

(5) (456) (5) (1,019)

5 (13) B (195)

(5) 13 (5) 195

The Company

The Company currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the directors monitor
its foreign exchange exposures and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposures should
the need arises. The Company does not expect any
significant currency risk which might materially affect
the Company'’s result of operations.

The Group and the Company monitors its risk to a
shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning
tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial
instruments and financial assets (e.g. trade receivables)
and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's and the Company's policy is to maintain
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and have available
funding through bank loans to meet its working capital
requirements.
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R|ERAR  AREBREAQRF 2/ The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s
BERIBET AR R A 2 HHBER financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period,
R based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as
follows:
The Group
20135
2013
ARRERRER
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
R12B831H
RERE SPIME @t ZEEE
Carrying
Less than amount at
On demand 1year Total 31 December

ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

BITER Bank loans - 171,505 171,505 170,275
ENBSRETRENEZE Trade and bills payables - 108,336 108,336 108,336
HiEN AR ETER Other payables and accruals - 27,059 27,059 27,059
JETBBE 5 Due to related parties 2,400 - 2,400 2,400

2,400 306,900 309,300 308,070

20124
2012
ARARBRR &R
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

R12A31H
REXE DR E 5t ZHRE(E
Carrying
Less than amount at
On demand 1 year Total 31 December

ARETL  ARRTT AREBTR ARBTRL
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000

RITER Bank loans
ERESEZRENEE  Trade and bills payables 119,440 119,440 119,400
Hio AR ETE R Other payables and accruals 28,930 28,980 28,980
[ERBE L 7R Due to related parties 40 - 40 40

145,200 145,200 144,599

40 293,620 293,660 293,019

2013FER
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¥ /N The Company
20135
2013
ARARERAERE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
R12A318
RERE DPR1E @5t ZRHEE
Carrying
Less than amount at
On demand 1 year Total 31 December
ARETR AR¥TR AR¥®Tn AR%®Tn
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HiEMNZERESER  Other payables and accruals - 1,949 1,949 1,949
FERHBARZE Due to subsidiaries 14,081 - 14,081 14,081
14,081 1,949 16,030 16,030
20124
2012
STHORBAR ST
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
W12 4318
REKE PR1E @it ZIREE
Carrying
Less than amount at
On demand 1 year Total 31 December
ARETT AREFTT AREFTT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Hi BN R E R Other payables and accruals = 2,798 2,798 2,798
FERMBARZE Due to subsidiaries 15,298 = 15,298 15,298
[EREE R TR Due to related parties 40 = 40 40
15,338 2,798 18,136 18,136

M20135F12A31 B EFRR - NEEE
ZEEE AL Z EY SHINE Management
Limited (TEY Shinel) A& & &R & - MR
B R X B B ix i B 32 Z EY Ocean
Management Limited ([EY Ocean ) & & #&
A% A a] © EY Shine 2 EY Ocean 84 fm 3L
DEAMERE - ARBZREIERT N E
EY Shine °

Annual Report 2013

At 31 December 2013, the directors consider the ultimate
parent company to be EY SHINE Management Limited (“EY
Shine"), which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
and the immediate holding company to be EY Ocean
Management Limited (“EY Ocean”), which is incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. EY Shine and EY Ocean did not
produce financial statements available for public use. The
ultimate controlling party of the Company is also EY Shine.
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HENEWBREEMBEE  BERE:
THEZESDBHUATETAR - #aTE8|
Nk WS EEIA - Ml ERREE
REZE2013F12 A31 B IEFE MARERR -
BARRI SRR R -

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB has issued the following amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements.

ERMBHREEER  SBIA® IFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
ERHBREEANEI.  ERUBREENE IFRS 9 Amendments and Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and

CHEIPE LS St M AR IFRS 7 Amendments Transition Disclosure®
RELAFTHRETR) BEHERS
PR A1 7 o 28 REER IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and Investment Entities’
£10% - B12% K IAS 27 (Revised)
REETERIZE 275 Amendments
(BERT) 2 BT A
EROBREEAE 145 EERERE" IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts*
BlIR g5t AR £ 325 EHEBEER SR IAS 32 Amendments Offsetting Financial Assets and

(BFTA) AafE! Financial Liabilities’

REEERIZ 365 FepBETkDEE IAS 36 Amendments Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
CHES) BE Non-Financial Assets'

B @i ERE39% TETAREREHE IAS 39 Amendments Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
({BETA) AR ZEE of Hedge Accounting'

BlR g5t AR £ 1957 REwiE B8 Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
CHES) 32 Contributions?

BRMBREEAZBITAR

BRMBREEAZEAAR

BRI R ERIF 115

(BETE)
REHERIF 165N
F 385 (BAIA)

BUBRBI S R 2RI 165

BB SRR F
& 2 # (2010-2012
B3

BB IR R 2 F
& 2 # (20122013
B2

YEAEEBRER L
RHRIES

AESMEREEEL
VAR

BEPITHHRA

g R2014F1 A1 Bz &R FEHME

E24

2 MN2014F7 A1 Bk 2 ERR 2 FEERA

3 R2014F7 A1 Bk 2 &Rz FE M

£ BERERBISN

8 H2016F 1 A1 AR EBIBZEND
[ BB B 15 3R 5 22 Rl B 75 3R R AR AR

B AEER — R ERA BN EER
BRI R E RO 2 R AE B PE R BB

E
3 M2016F 1 A1 Ak 2 &Rz FEERA

7 R2017F1 A1 Bk 2 &Rz FEEHME

ER

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to

IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle®

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to

IFRSs 2012-2013 Cycle?

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for acquisition of interests

in joint operations®

Amendments to IAS 16 Clarification of acceptable methods of
and IAS 38
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with

depreciation and amortisation®
customers’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
with limited exceptions

Effective for first annual IFRS financial statements beginning
on or after 1 January 2016

Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be
determined when the outstanding phases of IFRS 9 are
finalized

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

2013FER



40.

41.

HBE2013F12B83MBLEEFEERB
BHBERERNZIBEIA « 8]
RRAREEEEZE w)

AEB ERHE I F AT REIERT 2 BER R
BHREEIRNSRABE o BRLE -
ESRIEARERS  RAUFHT LK
B8] < BIFR B 75 5 Al N KA B AR 5=
B REXBERMBRAEGERTE -

LRz

MRAFERBDFRE S LB R E 0
ERHEEBRSBARLEEEY A
TREAFE2BATH—B  KABER
HA 2 ERERAE T HEMTE THE -

Annual Report 2013

40.

41.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2013 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these new and revised IFRSs is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group's results of operations and financial
position.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the classification of the operations of trading of
mobile phones, and manufacture and sale of batteries to
discontinued operations during the current year, certain
comparative amounts in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income have been adjusted
to conform with the current year's presentation.

EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited

(164)
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